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          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Good morning.

          3  This is a meeting of the Youth Services Committee of

          4  the City Council. My name is Kenneth Fisher, Council

          5  Member from Brooklyn. I am joined by Council Member

          6  Perkins from Manhattan, and I will note for the

          7  record that Council Members Stabile and Cruz have

          8  asked to be excused on the grounds of illness. Other

          9  Council members will be joining us later on during

         10  the course of our proceedings.

         11                 Our hearing today concerns the Summer

         12  Youth Employment Program, sometimes referred to as

         13  SYEP. This is a largely federally funded job

         14  opportunity for disadvantaged teenagers. It provides

         15  many of them with their first work experience. It

         16  provides them with job readiness skills, and it

         17  provides them with a stipend of about $1,000, a

         18  significant amount of money for most of these young

         19  people living lives in poverty. It is a hugely

         20  popular program.

         21                 In fact, traditionally funding is

         22  provided for about 40,000 young people in New York

         23  and the demand for positions is almost double that.

         24                 Unfortunately, we may be in a

         25  situation where under the best of circumstances the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            4

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  number of young people who will be offered jobs into

          3  this program is significantly lower than has been

          4  the situation in the past.

          5                 By the way, I might add that the City

          6  of New York supplements the federal funds available

          7  under this program to make even more positions

          8  available.

          9                 Notwithstanding that, because of the

         10  Workforce Investment Act adopted by the congress in

         11  1988, it appears, based on the testimony that we

         12  have reviewed in advance, that perhaps as many as

         13  20,000 fewer positions will be offered to young

         14  people, and that is assuming that everything goes

         15  right.

         16                 In addition to that, in order for the

         17  City to be able to access the federal funds

         18  available under the Workforce Investment Act for

         19  all, it needs to have an approved plan in place by

         20  the spring, approved by a board appointed by the

         21  Mayor and a board appointed by the Governor, neither

         22  one of which has been created yet.

         23                 The plan is not, to the best of our

         24  knowledge, prepared, and it is unclear whether the

         25  deadlines established under the federal rules will
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          2  be met.

          3                 Not only that, but assuming that

          4  everything goes well, we still may have problems in

          5  meeting the targets under the plan because this is

          6  the time of year when the contractors, the social

          7  service agencies that normally recruit the young

          8  people are staffing up, are identifying where those

          9  young people are going to come from and are

         10  preparing their recruitment activities.

         11                 They can't afford to wait until June

         12  1st to start thinking about how they are going to

         13  meet their goals, as a result of which we may be in

         14  a situation where the providers are contractually

         15  obligated to meet goals that are impossible to meet,

         16  resulting either in them declining to participate in

         17  the program at all, or running the risk of having

         18  their reputations damaged by their inability to meet

         19  the targets.

         20                 This morning we are going to hear

         21  from one of the country's leading experts on this,

         22  familiar with the situation not just in New York

         23  City but around the country. And we will be hearing

         24  from the Department of Employment, which is the

         25  agency responsible for the administration of the
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          2  summer youth employment program.

          3                 Following that we will be hearing

          4  from a number of the providers who are active in

          5  this area, as well as advocates on behalf of young

          6  people.

          7                 I remember about three years ago we

          8  held hearings in this Council Chamber on the Y2K

          9  program, and it was the first time that the City

         10  Council had taken it up. And I remember the City

         11  told us at that time that the situation was well

         12  under hand because they had appropriated $300,000

         13  for Y2K compliance. About $400 million later, we are

         14  not sure we are going to be ready for this New

         15  Year's Eve.

         16                 Not only that, but at those hearings

         17  we learned that if they decided that day what the

         18  solution to the problem was going to be, under the

         19  City's procurement rules didn't have enough time to

         20  buy the software and the technical assistance in

         21  order to implement it in time. And in fact, we wound

         22  up having to fashion emergency legislation to wave

         23  the normal procurement rules in order for the City

         24  to get ready.

         25                 Well, while this is not quite as
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          2  dramatic, it can have just as significant an impact

          3  for thousands, perhaps tens of thousands of young

          4  people who miss out on an opportunity this coming

          5  summer.

          6                 Kids 2K, we are not ready, I don't

          7  know whether we can be ready, and we are going to

          8  see whether or not by shedding some light on this

          9  situation we can make sure that the persons who are

         10  responsible for making sure that these kids get the

         11  job opportunity that we think they deserve and that

         12  they need, do what they have to do to make this

         13  program successful yet again.

         14                 So, having said that by way of

         15  introduction, let me call our first witness, John

         16  Twomey, and I would ask if you would introduce

         17  yourself. The button on the microphone should be

         18  unlit. Just identify yourself and please proceed

         19  with your testimony.

         20                 MR. TWOMEY: Good morning, Chairman

         21  Fisher, Council Member Perkins.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We also have

         23  Council Member Espada with us.

         24                 MR. TWOMEY: Council Member Espada,

         25  how are you doing?
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          2                 Thank you for this opportunity to

          3  testify on the implications for the Summer Youth

          4  Employment Program in New York City in Summer the

          5  year 2000.

          6                 I am John Twomey. I am the Executive

          7  Director of the New York Association of Training and

          8  Employment Professionals, NYATEP. This position I

          9  have held since 1987.

         10                 NYATEP represents the service

         11  delivery areas across New York State who provide

         12  federal job training under the Job Training

         13  Partnership Act, JTPA.

         14                 One of the programs that has

         15  historically been offered under JTPA and long before

         16  that JTPA piece of legislation was enacted has been

         17  the Summer Youth Employment Program.

         18                 The summer program is one I know

         19  firsthand, an initiative for which I have great

         20  fondness. For ten years before I came to work at

         21  NYATEP I was the Assistant Director of Youth and

         22  Employment Programs in Northwest Bronx Community

         23  Clergy Coalition, community-based organization in

         24  the Bronx. During that time we administered a summer

         25  program that at its height served 550 young people.
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          2  I greatly enjoyed all the many youth and adult

          3  employment activities that I undertook during that

          4  time in my professional career, but there is no

          5  other satisfaction like the look of pride and

          6  delight in the face of a 14-year-old youngster when

          7  they actually receive that first paycheck as a

          8  result of their work.

          9                 It is with a heavy heart I come

         10  before you today, to say that while there are many

         11  good and necessary improvements in the national

         12  workforce development system brought about by the

         13  enactment of the Workforce Investment Act, WIA,

         14  there is also a radical restructuring of the Summer

         15  Youth Program as we knew it. And I say knew it

         16  because it is a different program this year.

         17                 First, let me address the rationale

         18  behind WIA. The economy has changed. Lester Thurow,

         19  Dean of the Sloan School, he is an economist at MIT

         20  in Massachusetts, has said that he believes only 50

         21  percent of the workers in the United States have the

         22  skills to be knowlege workers but 85 percent of all

         23  new jobs require knowledge workers. Seventy-five

         24  percent of the workers in the Year 2000 are working

         25  today. So, if the skills are changing that quickly,
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          2  this is a national challenge we face, the equivalent

          3  of trying to catch up to Sputnick I guess.

          4                 In a nutshell, we are losing

          5  good-paying jobs at that lesser skilled workers

          6  could perform, while at the same time we cannot fill

          7  many high skill/high wages jobs.

          8                 Additionally, many of our children

          9  and neighbors will change not just jobs, but careers

         10  every five to seven years. If you add into this mix

         11  the fact that over 20 percent of the workers of the

         12  United States are now self-employed, and if the

         13  average business from beginning to end runs seven

         14  years, you can make the case why we need to build a

         15  genuine one-stop career center system for all

         16  workers, unemployed, who have historically been

         17  served in these programs, but also the underemployed

         18  and the employed today in fields where people will

         19  need new skills to get the expertise needed to

         20  succeed in this new economy.

         21                 In fact, on the adult level, today's

         22  is youth programs, and the only required local

         23  activity under the Workforce Investment Act is the

         24  establishment of a one stop system.

         25                 I think that is a good and timely
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          2  idea, it is the topic of another day's discussion.

          3                 I think there is also very solid

          4  rationale behind some of the changes in the Youth

          5  Programming.

          6                 What I would like to do is use my

          7  brief time just to set the stage why there will be

          8  big changes, and why I think there will be in New

          9  York and across the country a tremendous change in

         10  the number of kids that can be served under this

         11  program.

         12                 It is an inevitable fact in New York

         13  City this summer a very wide reduction in the number

         14  of youth served will occur.

         15                 Plainly speaking, this means many

         16  fewer economically disadvantaged youth will get

         17  their first exposure to the world of work and an

         18  accompanying income infusion to their families and

         19  their neighborhoods.

         20                 Many college students who return to

         21  the community in the summer and would have worked as

         22  counselors, are mentors and role models for these

         23  summer youth, will now not have that job

         24  opportunity.

         25                 And finally, a staggering number of
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          2  not-for-profit worksites will have to curtail

          3  valuable services because they have significantly

          4  reduced number of young people working with them.

          5                 A good example I think would be day

          6  camps. Maybe a working parent just struggling to get

          7  by has her youngsters in a before school/after

          8  school program, closed in the summer and relies on a

          9  day camp which services have been extended

         10  traditionally, probably since 1960 by the Summer

         11  Youth Employment Program.

         12                 Why is there such a reduction in

         13  service levels? I think there are three major

         14  reasons. First, one of the major changes under the

         15  Workforce Investment Act is that it requires

         16  year-round youth programs to be combined with a

         17  Summer Youth Employment Program into one youth block

         18  grant.

         19                 In the spirit of block grants to

         20  states, 15 percent of these now combined year-round

         21  and formerly summer youth funds are reserved to the

         22  Governor. The Governor gets the pool, 15 percent,

         23  from each local area that were youth funds, with 15

         24  percent of adult funds, 15 percent of dislocated

         25  worker funding.
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          2                 The rationale behind this change is

          3  it gives flexibility to states, since these three

          4  pools of funds can be combined and targeted to any

          5  of these individual initiatives, or other allowable

          6  activities or even previously unallowed incumbent

          7  worker training.

          8                 I think many of these opportunities

          9  are positive ones, particularly the ability to

         10  enhance outdated skills of incumbent workers, and

         11  with welfare reform in this economy, there are a

         12  number of low skill workers who are now working and

         13  would not otherwise have an ability to get the to

         14  the second, third row of the ladder.

         15                 The repercussion, however, is that in

         16  the past 100 percent of the summer youth dollars

         17  went directly to localities, and this translates in

         18  effect here in New York City into a 15 percent cut,

         19  which off the top of my head might be 7,200 less

         20  young people that would work just because of that

         21  change.

         22                 Secondly, Workforce Investment Act

         23  required 30 percent of the now combined youth funds

         24  to be spent on out-of-school youth.

         25                 Many youth advocates supported this
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          2  language in congress under the theory that JTPA, Job

          3  Training Partnership Act, was one of the only

          4  sources of funding for services to out of school

          5  youth.

          6                 Particularly because four years ago

          7  when there was a federal deficit, congress cut

          8  year-round youth programming by 79 percent. They

          9  gutted that program. So then they insisted at 50

         10  percent of the remaining money be spent on

         11  out-of-school youth.

         12                 However, in New York City, 100

         13  percent of the year-round youth funds have been

         14  spent on out-of-school youth, unlike most areas of

         15  the country, been a strong commitment to

         16  out-of-school youth, and in fact additional adult

         17  funds were also transferred in to out-of-school

         18  initiatives.

         19                 The summer program I think was about

         20  92 percent in school and maybe 60, 65 percent 14 and

         21  15 year olds who by legal definition can't be

         22  considered out of school.

         23                 So, in the City this 30 percent

         24  spending requirement for out-of-school youth

         25  significantly affects the numbers who could be
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          2  served in a summer component, and changes the

          3  traditional ratio of in-school to out-of-school. It

          4  will make it very much harder for a 14 or a 15 year

          5  old who couldn't get a job in the regular economy to

          6  find that first job experience.

          7                 The third factor is that they have

          8  changed the program design in the Workforce

          9  Investment Act for youth.

         10                 Workforce Investment Act no longer

         11  allows the stand alone work experience that compose

         12  many of the SYEP program components for young

         13  people.

         14                 The theory is that such short term

         15  summer work must be coupled now with either an

         16  educational or occupational skill attainment,

         17  policy-wise you can argue it is better to serve,

         18  less young people more intensively have a greater

         19  effect, and that probably is true in a lot of cases.

         20                 It is also true, however, that many

         21  young people in distressed neighborhoods in New York

         22  City need only an exposure to work and an infusion

         23  of income to their families.

         24                 In effect, WIA requires youth to

         25  receive more comprehensive services for longer
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          2  periods of time. Youth in the summer now count

          3  against performance measures to drive incentive

          4  money for this program, and finally, a one-year

          5  follow up is required. This is all new, and the

          6  translation is there will be a much higher cost per

          7  spot, and it is another reason why less youth will

          8  be served.

          9                 You may wonder why there has not been

         10  more of a knowledge about this. You know, the clock

         11  is ticking. I think that is a very good question.

         12  As Chairman Fisher alluded to, I work very closely

         13  with City JTPA directors around the country and

         14  county directors around the country, and many of

         15  them have told me they have raised this issue with

         16  their congressional representatives and were later

         17  told by those representatives that they went back to

         18  the staff of their committees of congress and were

         19  told that it is a block grant, summer activities are

         20  allowed, which is true, but because of the three

         21  reasons I told you, there are radical shifts, and

         22  around the country many areas will only be able to

         23  serve ten to 25 percent of the numbers they

         24  previously served.

         25                 Although by now many summer program
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          2  operators know about this new reality, many parents,

          3  young people, work sites and college students won't

          4  really begin to think about summer until next

          5  spring.

          6                 Two weeks ago, I would like to just

          7  say, I was out in New Mexico with a group of county

          8  officials and they really had no idea, although they

          9  are representatives of the National Association of

         10  Counties, elected officials, of the magnitude of

         11  these cuts, and decided to make it one of their

         12  priorities to increase funding and not get into a

         13  financial tug-o-war between in-school and

         14  out-of-school kids.

         15                 In fact, when I got back last week, I

         16  wrote an article that will be in the January issue

         17  of the New York State Association of Counties News

         18  just raising this issue. I don't think New York City

         19  is the only place people have not yet understood how

         20  radical these changes and cuts are.

         21                 So, I am delighted to accept your

         22  invitation to testify here today. I appreciate the

         23  opportunity to ask you to bring this to realization

         24  of the new summer reality to your colleagues in New

         25  York's congressional delegation.
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          2                 I would say that this WIA

          3  implementation is supposed to be a block grant, it

          4  really isn't. It is a deceptively complex task.

          5  Local areas are stifled a little bit by the fact

          6  that State Board has not yet formally certified

          7  their boundary. They don't know their money yet. I

          8  think that I will close by saying, I think there is

          9  a risk that if public awareness on these cuts is

         10  raised, one of the reactions might lead to finger

         11  pointing, and I hope that your hearing today will

         12  act instead as a catalyst to explore alternative

         13  funding in short term for this year, as well as a

         14  leading investigation of possible longer term

         15  solutions.

         16                 I will stop here in the interest of

         17  time, and your agenda is pretty full today. I am

         18  happy to answer any questions you have now, or at a

         19  later date. Thank you, again, for this opportunity

         20  to testify.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you for

         22  your testimony.

         23                 Let me just start with the numbers.

         24  If you add them all up together, how many fewer

         25  summer jobs would you guess are going to be
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          2  available in Summer 2000, if nothing changes at this

          3  point?

          4                 MR. TWOMEY: I think really that,

          5  without trying to sound like a weasel, I think that

          6  is probably a question you should ask some of the

          7  representatives of the agency responsible for

          8  running the programs, because there are a million

          9  factors. Some places are going to pay more for

         10  out-of-school kids to increase the recruitment. That

         11  would increase recruitment and change the numbers.

         12                 Generally nationally I will tell you

         13  the big cities in small areas, that we are looking

         14  at serving anywhere from 10 to 25 percent, and that

         15  also depends how many alternative funds they can

         16  bring in.

         17                 It is a huge serious cut, people

         18  don't know.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Under the

         20  Workforce Investment Act, does the federal

         21  Department of Labor, and they will be testifying

         22  later this morning, do they have the ability to

         23  grant waivers?  From any of these restrictions, to

         24  grant the waiver say of 15 percent set-aside for the

         25  Governor, any of the other rules that you alluded
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          2  to?

          3                 MR. TWOMEY: I would think that that

          4  probably is not a waivable area.

          5                 Everybody is a little unsure where

          6  you could get a waiver or not because it is a brand

          7  new act, it is not set up yet. The final regulations

          8  will be out December 31st, and the timetable for

          9  summer even has been changed only in the last month

         10  or so. There is draft state policy with a comment

         11  period until December 15th, that would expedite it

         12  so we could pull down in New York State, New York

         13  City funds we normally would have had by March 1st

         14  to identify kids, make sure they were eligible, find

         15  worksites, monitor that worksites are acceptable.

         16                 So, we are really behind the gun here

         17  and there are about ten major initiatives going on

         18  at once and I think that is probably another reason

         19  why there hasn't been the amount of light shed on

         20  this issue that it deserves.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I take your

         22  suggestion about not finger pointing to heart, but I

         23  am troubled by something that I thought I understood

         24  from your testimony.

         25                 In order for there to be a program,
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          2  we need to have an approved plan; is that correct?

          3                 MR. TWOMEY: That's true.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And that plan

          5  requires boundaries to be established that have not

          6  yet been established, it requires state regulations,

          7  or federal regulations that aren't final yet, state

          8  regulations that aren't final yet. Did I hear that

          9  correctly?

         10                 MR. TWOMEY: Y2K is starting to look

         11  good now, huh?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And I understand

         13  also, and we will be getting into this in a little

         14  bit more detail later on, that the City and the

         15  State are also supposed to create new entities to

         16  supervise the implementation of this plan, could you

         17  elaborate a little on that and tell us what the

         18  status is of the creation of those entities at both

         19  those City and State levels?

         20                 MR. TWOMEY: Well, certainly the

         21  boundaries will end up New York City. I mean, you

         22  could bet that way and be probably 100 percent sure.

         23                 However, to officially have your

         24  boundaries, the Governor has to consult with a state

         25  workforce investment board. That board was agreed
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          2  legislatively between the Assembly, the Senate and

          3  Governor August the 3rd, but the legislation was not

          4  forwarded to the Governor and not signed until

          5  November the 10th.

          6                 Letters have gone out to Board

          7  members appointing them, but there is a process, a

          8  clearance process, if you can imagine, they have not

          9  met yet. They will probably meet some time between

         10  late December and the first week in January. I

         11  believe the first day they would set your

         12  boundaries.

         13                 They also have to promulgate official

         14  criteria to the Mayor and the City here to appoint

         15  the Board. So, is that pretty messy? You bet.

         16                 The State, there is a State plan

         17  required. The interim guidance from the State is

         18  properly vague and it will be easier to do and the

         19  money will flow, but we are going to have to move

         20  very quickly.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: When does all of

         22  this have to be completed, t's crossed, i's dotted?

         23                 MR. TWOMEY: JTPA, the clock strikes

         24  midnight for JTPA June 30th, so we go into WIA ready

         25  or not. The overall state plan has to be submitted
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          2  to the U.S. Department of Labor April 1st, there is

          3  a 30-day comment period, so by late February, full

          4  local plans have to be done. There are some

          5  abbreviated local plans that will probably have to

          6  be done because the youth section, to get the money

          7  March 1st, has to go into Washington December 31st.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So let me just

          9  make sure I got that right. We have to have our plan

         10  into Washington by the end of this year in order for

         11  us to be able to get the money by March 1st so that

         12  we have a shot at being able to have a successful

         13  program this summer.

         14                 MR. TWOMEY: It is an abbreviated

         15  section that has to be completed for the money to

         16  move, I think it is in everybody's interest that the

         17  money to move in any big city, and I think that that

         18  will not be the most onerous part.

         19                 But we are trying to build a system.

         20  This would not be the way you are I designed it. I

         21  mean, I don't see business would set up project

         22  research in such a crazed time frame. But it is what

         23  it is and we will have to make the best we can do of

         24  it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is there a public
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          2  comment period on the City portion of the plan?

          3                 MR. TWOMEY: I believe that there is,

          4  yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So that means

          6  that abbreviated or not abbreviated, that portion of

          7  it has to be ready some time in January also, I

          8  would think.

          9                 MR. TWOMEY: Yes, I believe that is

         10  true, and if it is not, you know, my colleagues from

         11  the City will correct me. But the problem is, this

         12  act envisioned that these boards would be up much

         13  quicker officially to make some of these policies

         14  and also set up a youth council and events just did

         15  not allow that to happen.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

         17  Perkins.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you.

         19                 Let me just go over this last part.

         20  You are saying the state budget process has been a

         21  problem in terms of getting ready on the state

         22  level?

         23                 MR. TWOMEY: It only is a problem in

         24  the sense that as you know many side agreements are

         25  negotiated simultaneously and the agreement on the
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          2  composition of the State Board, which has been done

          3  now legislatively, was attached to another bill that

          4  was also agreed on the 3rd of August.

          5                 Of course, in hindsight if we had

          6  been able to agree in say January, then the back

          7  deadlines don't go away, but in local areas there

          8  would have been much more planning done in a logical

          9  manner.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So the State

         11  Board has not been set up because of this delayed

         12  budget process?

         13                 MR. TWOMEY: The State Board was not

         14  authorized until the legislation was signed and it

         15  came through the budget process and was signed

         16  November 10th. Since then the Board has been I guess

         17  selected by the Governor, and I understand letters

         18  went out last week, but they haven't met yet.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Now, is there

         20  also a City Board that has to be set up?

         21                 MR. TWOMEY: Every local area has to

         22  set up a local workforce investment board, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And what is

         24  the time frame for that?

         25                 MR. TWOMEY: Well, they really can't
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          2  officially set it up until you know your geography

          3  and you have the criteria to appoint board members.

          4  I would think --

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Geography and

          6  criteria come from the State Board?

          7                 MR. TWOMEY: Yes. And it is in the

          8  federal law. You can finesse it, but only to a

          9  certain degree. I mean, the State Labor Department,

         10  I think to their credit, recent sent out a letter to

         11  people saying here are the criteria we intend to

         12  propose. We are behind the 8 ball every possible

         13  part of this process, and the bottom line is there

         14  are major changes in the program and there are large

         15  segments of communities that just will not know what

         16  they are yet.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: This

         18  Workforce Investment Act, who are the sponsors of

         19  this?

         20                 MR. TWOMEY: It had overwhelming

         21  bipartisan support. It was probably a really good

         22  idea. It doesn't go far enough. It is like many

         23  pieces of legislation, there is a lot of compromises

         24  in it.

         25                 But the system it envisions, if we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            27

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  did everything with plenty of time up front, it

          3  probably would still take seven to ten years to get

          4  the kinds out of it. The primary sponsors would be

          5  Congressman Goodlink of Pennsylvania, and in the

          6  House, and then the Subcommittee that really pushed

          7  this mostly through was Senator Dwyne of Ohio,

          8  former Governor Dwyne.

          9                 Senator Kennedy is a ranking minority

         10  member in the Senate.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In your

         12  testimony you make reference to the need for the

         13  Congress people, the congressional delegation to pay

         14  some attention to these problems. Has an approach

         15  been made by your group or anyone else towards that

         16  end?

         17                 MR. TWOMEY: Yes. Our group is working

         18  with the US Conference of Mayors and with the

         19  National Association of Counties, and we are working

         20  through the State Association of Counties to point

         21  out the real effect of this.

         22                 Because it is true that you can still

         23  do a summer activity, but you have to balance that

         24  against the fact that you have those three

         25  mitigating major circumstances that are going to cut
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          2  your numbers to such levels.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But I am not

          4  clear, the associations that you have been working

          5  with, where does the New York Delegation get

          6  involved? The New York Congressional Delegation.

          7                 MR. TWOMEY: I don't believe that they

          8  yet fully are apprised of the size of the cuts, and

          9  part of that is because people don't know how much

         10  money they are getting, they won't know until

         11  January, so they can't really give a hard number of

         12  what these cuts are going to be.

         13                 And that timetable, January, even

         14  though the money started in March and went forward,

         15  that is a traditional timetable, it just doesn't fit

         16  these circumstances.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So there has

         18  been no direct effort to communicate with the New

         19  York Delegation yet?

         20                 MR. TWOMEY: No. On a combined basis,

         21  I don't know that anyone has met with a New York

         22  Delegation or with a city delegation and said this

         23  is what this really means.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Thank you

         25  very much.
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          2                 MR. TWOMEY: Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

          4  much for your testimony.

          5                 We will now hear from the

          6  Administration, and then they are going to be

          7  followed by the New York Department of Labor.

          8                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Good

          9  morning. My name is Dorothy Lehman and I am the

         10  Associate Commissioner for Planning at the New York

         11  City Department of Employment. I appreciate this

         12  opportunity to appear before you today to discuss

         13  the Workforce Investment Act of 1998, and its

         14  implications on the Summer Youth Employment Program,

         15  commonly known as SYEP.

         16                 I would like to first start with some

         17  background on the Workforce Investment Act. WIA is

         18  the successor legislation to the current Job

         19  Training Partnership Act, JTPA. WIA is required to

         20  be implemented across the country by July 1st, 2000.

         21  The intent of WIA is to streamline job readiness and

         22  training programs and to make them readily

         23  accessible to customers through a one-stop system.

         24                 Of the many features of the Workforce

         25  Investment Act, and one that is of particular
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          2  concern to both the Giuliani Administration and to

          3  this Committee is the elimination of an independent

          4  funding stream for SYEP.

          5                 Title IIB of JTPA, authorized the

          6  appropriation and allocation of funds for a

          7  stand-alone Summer Employment Program. This was in

          8  addition to JTPA Title IIC funds which provided for

          9  the long-term employability and educational

         10  enhancements of youth on a year-long basis.

         11                 Last summer, for example, the City of

         12  New York was able to utilize its $47 million Title

         13  IIB allocation to create 40,247 summer jobs for

         14  youth, ages 14 to 21.

         15                 Youth were employed for a seven-week

         16  period at over 3,000 work sites throughout all five

         17  boroughs.

         18                 For many it was their first work

         19  experience. Their summer employment experience

         20  provided them with the foundation for a good work

         21  ethic that will carry with them in their chosen

         22  future career and educational attainments.

         23                 Under WIA, there will be no separate

         24  categories of youth training and summer employment.

         25  Youth services are to be provided in one
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          2  comprehensive design. WIA youth activities and

          3  outcomes are separated into younger youth ages 14 to

          4  18, and older youth, ages 19 to 21.

          5                 Younger youth services emphasize

          6  improvement of educational attainment, returning to

          7  or remaining in school and entry into post secondary

          8  education. Services for the 19 to 21 age group,

          9  however, must lead to unsubsidized employment,

         10  military service, or an apprenticeship.

         11                 A minimum of 30 percent of all funds

         12  received for youth activities under WIA must be

         13  dedicated to out of school youth.

         14                 If the City were to utilize the WIA

         15  funds for a summer employment program, it must be

         16  tied into a year-long program that would have to

         17  produce outcomes such as attainment of basic skills,

         18  educational attainment, placement and retention into

         19  employment.

         20                 The cost of a year-round program

         21  would greatly diminish the number of youth it would

         22  be able to serve as compared to the number of youth

         23  served through SYEP.

         24                 However, this will allow the

         25  Department of Employment's school year program to
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          2  increase its enrollments, but it will be at the

          3  expense of SYEP.

          4                 An increase of school year

          5  enrollments, will allow for a greater number of

          6  youths in receiving services that will improve their

          7  long-term employability, encourage completion of

          8  educational roles and enhance their employment and

          9  earning potentials.

         10                 Prior to and since the passage of the

         11  Workforce Investment Act, the Giuliani

         12  Administration has been actively lobbying to have a

         13  stand-alone funding stream for SYEP reinstated.

         14                 In our comments to the U.S.

         15  Department of Labor regarding the act and the

         16  interim final regulations that would govern the act,

         17  the Administration has made its position clear that

         18  the absence of an SYEP would adversely effect the

         19  youth of the City.

         20                 At the Department of Employment, we

         21  are currently planning how we can best maximize

         22  employment opportunities for youth next summer.

         23                 DOE has been actively working with

         24  other relevant City agencies, the Deputy Mayors and

         25  senior Administration officials in an effort to
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          2  determine how to best handle the effects of the

          3  elimination of SYEP funding.

          4                 In addition, the City has established

          5  a WIA Task Force, which will be headed by the

          6  Mayor's Office of Operations. It will direct all WIA

          7  implementation efforts for the City.

          8                 Our legislative offices are in

          9  constant contact with the U.S. Department of Labor

         10  and the New York State Department of Labor in

         11  regards to this matter.

         12                 It is the hope and commitment of this

         13  Administration to mitigation the adverse effects of

         14  the elimination of funds for SYEP. We also invite

         15  you, Chairman Fisher, and the members of the Youth

         16  Services Committee and all of the City Council, to

         17  join us in seeking a solution to this problem.

         18                 We hope that we can rely on your

         19  input, support and cooperation as we aim to create

         20  job opportunities for the youth of our city.

         21                 Thank you very much for listening to

         22  my testimony. I will gladly accept any questions.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner, 15

         24  percent off the top for the Governor, that has got

         25  nothing to do with whether we have year-round or --
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That's

          3  correct. That comes right off the top of the block

          4  grant.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay. And that

          6  would represent in the ordinary course of business

          7  about how many opportunities for young people?

          8                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

          9  would say probably about 7,000.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And maybe the

         11  Governor decides to give us that money or maybe he

         12  doesn't. Do we know whether the Governor has

         13  indicated what he intends to do with the 15 percent

         14  he has taken off the top?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: No, we

         16  have gotten no guidance yet on what will happen with

         17  the 15 percent off the top.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And then we have

         19  this 30 percent set-aside for year --

         20                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         21  Out-of-school youth.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: For out-of-school

         23  youth, and did I understand your testimony that the

         24  intention would be to try and roll that into the

         25  year-round program, or am I mixing two things up
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          2  there?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: They

          4  all have to be in a year-round program, but 30

          5  percent of the funds must now be dedicated to

          6  out-of-school youth.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And those

          8  out-of-school youth are usually more difficult to

          9  recruit and to retain for a program like this,

         10  because by definition they are not accessible to the

         11  system.

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         13  Exactly.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So, would it be

         15  fair to expect that whatever you could buy with that

         16  30 percent, if you were dealing with a regular SYEP

         17  program, you are going to buy less slots or have

         18  fewer opportunities for those young people because

         19  it is going to cost more to be able to provide them

         20  with a service?

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         22  Correct.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And do we have a

         24  guesstimate even of how many spots, summer spots

         25  will be lost because the cost of providing the
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          2  services for 30 percent have gone up?

          3                 I am not saying it is a bad idea, I

          4  just want to understand what the implications are.

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I am

          6  going to guess it is probably about 10,000 possibly

          7  because of that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So we are up to

          9  about 17,000. Ten-thousand probably are certain --

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That

         11  is a rough estimate.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I understand.

         13                 And then another 7,000 that maybe

         14  depends on what the Governor does with his

         15  allocation, and that is so that everything works

         16  correctly.

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I gather from

         19  your statements regarding the foundation for good

         20  work ethic, as well as other comments made this week

         21  by the Department at our MMR hearings that the

         22  Administration generally believes that the summer

         23  youth employment program is a good program that

         24  provides a valuable experience to these young

         25  people; is that correct?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes,

          3  sir.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is the

          5  Administration committed to seeing that as many

          6  young people get the opportunity to participate in

          7  this program next summer as participated last

          8  summer?

          9                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: The

         10  Administration is committed to working towards that

         11  goal, absolutely.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Even if that

         13  requires City tax levy dollars to fill in the gap?

         14                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: Yes

         15  --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: You just have to

         17  identify yourself for the record, George.

         18                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         19  Okay. My name is George Rodriguez, Assistant

         20  Commissioner for Intergovernmental Affairs at the

         21  New York City Department of Employment.

         22                 Again, as Associate Commissioner

         23  Lehman has stated, it is the top, it is a top

         24  priority for the Administration to preserve as many

         25  summer employment jobs next summer as we have
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          2  traditionally.

          3                 In regards to City tax levy dollars,

          4  the utilization of City tax levy dollars, that is an

          5  issue that the WIA Task Force that has been put

          6  together will be looking at closely.

          7                 I imagine that the Office of

          8  Management and Budget and City Council Finance will

          9  be talking to one another regarding this matter.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: By the way, when

         11  was that Task Force created?

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         13  Recently.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: How recently?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

         16  don't --

         17                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         18  Yes, it was created recently. I don't have an exact

         19  date but I will say it was more in step with the

         20  line after the Governor signed the authorization,

         21  the authorizing legislation to establish the

         22  Statewide Workforce Investment Board.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So, it was some

         24  time after November 10th.

         25                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:
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          2  Yes.

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Right.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is there a

          5  document that creates that Task Force?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: I

          7  don't think so, no. I am not aware of that.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is there a list

          9  of the members of the task force?

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: I

         11  am sure there is and we would, I would have to speak

         12  to the Office of Operations in terms of producing

         13  that list.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And I would like

         15  to know if you can get back to us with a specific

         16  date when that task force was created.

         17                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         18  Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Commissioner

         20  Lehman, in your testimony you said if the City was

         21  to utilize WIA funds, it must be tied. Why is it

         22  conditional? What is the if?

         23                 Are we going to have -- do we intend

         24  to use WIA funds?

         25                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: All right.

          3                 We heard testimony earlier this

          4  morning, and I just want to confirm this with the

          5  Administration, as of today, we don't have final

          6  federal regulations.

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That's

          8  correct.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We don't have

         10  approved boundaries, although we would reasonably

         11  expect that it would be the City of New York.

         12                 We don't have a state policy.

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: The Governor's

         16  Board has not been constituted yet, that is also

         17  correct?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         19  Correct.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay. And the

         21  City board has likewise not been constituted?

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That's

         23  correct.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Have the members

         25  of the City Board been identified?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I do

          3  not believe so, because as Mr. Twomey pointed out,

          4  we have to wait for the criteria to be established

          5  by the Governor before the Mayor can go ahead and

          6  start to appoint against that criteria.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And that is

          8  supposed to happen by December 15th, the State

          9  criteria? That is when I understood the state --

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: No, I

         11  think what Mr. Twomey was referring to there was the

         12  youth plan.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         15  Comments for the youth plan have to be in by --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So when will the

         17  criteria be complete?

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: And

         19  what is the deadline for whatever action the City

         20  Board has to take once the Board is constituted?

         21                 In other words, do you have to do

         22  anything in January? Does the City Board have to

         23  approve something in order for you to be able to

         24  file it in January?

         25                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: The
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          2  City Board has to approve the plan, both I believe

          3  the youth plan that the City would have to, as well

          4  as the overall WIA plan, absolutely must be approved

          5  by the Board.

          6                 If the overall WIA plan has to be

          7  submitted to US DOL April 1st, then the City Board

          8  would have to be looking at reviewing it probably in

          9  February.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: In February.

         11                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

         12  would guess.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Doesn't the youth

         14  plan have to be submitted earlier?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: The

         16  State's Youth Plan has to be submitted by December

         17  31st. They have not given guidance yet to the locals

         18  on how we are to proceed with our youth plans.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         20                 And they can submit that plan without

         21  our local board's approval?

         22                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And then in order

         24  to access the youth funds by March 1st, doesn't the

         25  City have to make some type of application prior to
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          2  March 1st?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That

          4  would be the Youth Plan, I would think. We don't

          5  have the guidelines yet, but I think it would be

          6  through the Youth Plan.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And that Youth

          8  Plan would have to be approved you say in February?

          9                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That

         10  is my rough guess as to when it would have to be

         11  approved.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         13                 Is that plan in preparation now?

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: No,

         15  sir. Because we don't have the guidelines from the

         16  State.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Well, have you

         18  been -- according to your testimony, your

         19  legislative offices are in constant contact with the

         20  U.S. Department of Labor and the New York State

         21  Department of Labor in regards to this matter; don't

         22  you have some sense of what the guidelines are going

         23  to say?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         25  Truthfully, no, sir.
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          2                 We know what WIA requires, okay? We

          3  can assume that it is going to be something similar

          4  to that, but we don't know all the details yet. So,

          5  obviously, as soon as we get the guideline it is

          6  going to be full speed ahead on program planning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I am not an

          8  expert on planning, I am a simple Council Member

          9  from Brooklyn. So, maybe I am overestimating how

         10  complicated it is going to be to put this plan

         11  together.

         12                 Is this like a one-page thing, we

         13  plan to spend the money, please send us a check, or

         14  is it more complicated than that?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         16  Truthfully, I don't know. But I have looked at the

         17  State's plan and it is only a few pages long. It is

         18  not a very thick document.

         19                 So, if ours is on the same lines as

         20  that, no, it won't be too difficult.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is there a public

         22  comment period for the City plan?

         23                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I am

         24  sure there would have to be.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We know it is 30
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          2  days for the state, right? So, let's assume that the

          3  City plan is being submitted in February.

          4                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Say

          5  February.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Then that means

          7  that we would have to publish it some time in

          8  January, if there is the same 30-day comment period.

          9  But we haven't started writing it because we don't

         10  have guidelines and therefore we don't have a board

         11  to approve it.

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: There was a

         14  circular for comment memo -- a circulate for comment

         15  memo that the State Department of Labor put up on

         16  their web site with some guidelines? Was that of any

         17  assistance in kicking off a planning process? Are

         18  you familiar with that?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Can

         20  you be more specific as to which one you are talking

         21  about?

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We were told that

         23  the State Department of Labor has a web site, and

         24  that they posted a memorandum that outlined sort of

         25  what their thinking was going to be in terms of
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          2  these guidelines; does that ring a bell with you?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: They

          4  have posted something on memorandum of understanding

          5  and what those are going to be. The federal

          6  government has issued something on what a

          7  transitional state plan must look like. Those are

          8  the documents that I have seen up there.

          9                 Obviously, yes, reading all through

         10  those are giving us some sense of where we may be

         11  going with this, and having seen the State plan for

         12  youth activities just recently posted on their web

         13  site, which is a very simplified document.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We are assuming

         15  that -- are we assuming that given these type

         16  deadlines, whatever plan we come up with that is

         17  approved whenever we come up with it and the state

         18  does what they have to do, and all of which has to

         19  be submitted to the feds by April 1st, I think it

         20  is, that plan will be approved; we are not

         21  anticipating that the feds will turn around and say

         22  it was deficient in some area and jeopardize our

         23  ability to use any of the money?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

         25  don't think that would happen. It has never happened
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          2  with JTPA.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And just one

          4  moment, I think I am almost finished.

          5                 Am I correct that in the ordinary

          6  course of business, if WIA had never been enacted,

          7  that you would be in dialogue, the Department of

          8  Employment would be in dialogue now with the social

          9  service agencies that administer these programs on

         10  our behalf, and that they would be making plans for

         11  the coming summer. They can't wait until the spring

         12  to do that, that's correct?

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That's

         14  correct.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And it is not

         16  unreasonable to assume, therefore, that they are not

         17  really in a much better position to make plans than

         18  you are.

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That's

         20  correct, sir.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And let me ask

         22  you also, let's assume that we get all of our ducks

         23  lined up in time, putting aside the question that we

         24  may be losing out on 17,000 or more spots because of

         25  how WIA was constructed, assuming that you get
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          2  approval for the plan, how will the services of

          3  these agencies be procured?

          4                 In other words, this is a new

          5  program, and would you not be required to have some

          6  type of contract selection process?

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: We

          8  already have summer contracts in place, the ones

          9  that were selected out of the last request for

         10  proposals still have some life left on their terms.

         11                 So, we could simply adapt it to the

         12  WIA language.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: So, what you are

         14  saying is that contracts that basically, even though

         15  the services are provided over a seven-week period

         16  in the summer, the contract actually covers I guess

         17  a fiscal year --

         18                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

         19  Exactly, sir.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And so there is

         21  some funding ability to talk to the agencies now, et

         22  cetera. And so, the notion would be that those

         23  contracts would be extended to cover next summer

         24  without a new procurement process or request for

         25  proposals or anything else, although the funding
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          2  stream is different, the criteria is different, the

          3  performance goals would be different, and the

          4  compensation might be different. So, basically all

          5  of the essential terms of the contract will change

          6  to some extent but will extend the contract because

          7  at least we know we have those people available to

          8  us, because if we started a new process, we wouldn't

          9  actually have the contracts in place in time.

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And have you yet

         12  considered, you, the Administration, yet determined

         13  either through the Procurement Policy Board or the

         14  Mayor's Office of Contracts, appropriately called

         15  MOC, or the Corporation Counsel's Office, whether or

         16  not that procurement substitution is available to

         17  you? Have you made a determination that that can

         18  lawfully be done?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: We

         20  have had some discussions and some of it is going to

         21  depend on just how much of a change would have to be

         22  in the program, and part of that is going to depend

         23  on whether or not we can -- you know, in the

         24  discussions that we are trying to have with USDOL,

         25  the State Department of Labor, about the
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          2  availability of extra funding, or what the

          3  performance standards are going to be on these

          4  programs.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: I also want to

          6  mention, I think that, I know for a fact that at the

          7  last budget hearings, when we were doing what

          8  eventually became the adopted budget, I raised with

          9  the Administration the prospect of additional

         10  funding for the SYEP providers so they could augment

         11  their planning activities and so that they could be

         12  in a position that they were ready to catch whatever

         13  curve ball was about to be tossed in their

         14  direction, although that was not included in the

         15  last adopted budget or in the budget mods that we

         16  have done up until now.

         17                 Now, my understanding is that the

         18  Administration and the Council are having

         19  discussions about a budget mod that may be adopted

         20  shortly, and separate from that, the Mayor will be

         21  releasing his preliminary budget some time in

         22  January and I would like to know whether there has

         23  been any consideration of freeing up some additional

         24  funds so that the agencies that we are expecting are

         25  going to be able to fulfill a plan, can get some
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          2  help in getting ready to meet those obligations.

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: One

          4  of the partners in our WIA Task Force is the Office

          5  of Management and Budget and I know they are

          6  certainly up to speed with the implementation of the

          7  elimination of SYEP pursuant to this new

          8  legislation.

          9                 So, I am sure it is definitely

         10  something they are considering, and we will

         11  definitely relay your statement and your concerns

         12  back to OMB regarding this matter.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We had been

         14  joined previously by Council Member Quinn.

         15                 Council Member Perkins has a

         16  question.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: In light of

         18  all that has been said by the previous speaker, as

         19  well as yourselves, would it be accurate to suggest

         20  that we are on the verge of a disaster?

         21                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

         22  wouldn't like to use the term disaster. I haven't

         23  given up yet.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: You wouldn't

         25  like to use that term?
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          2                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

          3  haven't given up hope that we can't work this out.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So you are

          5  hopeful?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes, I

          7  am.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: This is the

          9  season for hope, so --

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes,

         11  sir.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: But obviously

         13  there are some challenging difficulties before you.

         14                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Very

         15  challenging.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

         17  you about the job centers. Can you explain what

         18  those are? Are you familiar with them?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: What

         20  are you referring to?

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The new law

         22  goes into effect in July and replaces the Job

         23  Training Partnership Act, if we have these one-stop

         24  new type job centers?

         25                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Right.
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          2  Well, they must be a one-stop system is what is

          3  required under WIA. And there has to be at least one

          4  physical job center in every WIA locality. Obviously

          5  for New York City you will need more than just one

          6  physical, but the rest of the idea is it is supposed

          7  to be a linking of many programs together in a

          8  coordinated approach.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Give me an

         10  example of how this might be manifest in the City,

         11  or in a borough in the City.

         12                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Okay.

         13                 Obviously the Department of

         14  Employment has worked at career centers, okay?

         15                 They are, you know, merely able to be

         16  turned into a one-stop center. But it really was

         17  required that you have to have more partners brought

         18  in. That is an important piece of it, bringing

         19  partners to the table, that you have several

         20  organizations providing services at one location to

         21  make it easier for you, the job seeker, or you the

         22  employer to go just to one place and find the

         23  services that you need.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So, the

         25  partners will be like service providers, or
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          2  not-for-profits?

          3                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN:

          4  Service providers, different City agencies, state

          5  agencies, okay? Something like the New York State

          6  Department of Labor, the unemployment insurance

          7  would be there. Something like VESID, vocational

          8  rehabilitation services, something like that.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: So for

         10  instance, let's get even more parochial like in

         11  Harlem, or the 9th district that I represent, is

         12  there a center contemplated?

         13                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: I

         14  would say there are centers contemplated all over

         15  the City. And certainly in an area like Harlem.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. The

         17  Workforce Investment Boards, are you familiar with

         18  those?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         21                 How do they get appointed and by what

         22  agency?

         23                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: They

         24  get appointed by the Mayor, but the Mayor has to

         25  have criteria given to him by the Governor as to how
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          2  he appoints against the mandated sectors that have

          3  to be represented.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. And by

          5  mandated sectors are we talking about industrial

          6  sectors or?

          7                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: There

          8  has to be 51 percent business.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay.

         10                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Then

         11  there has to be representation from unions,

         12  education, community-based organizations, economic

         13  development -- help me out here, George. There may

         14  be about nine or so sectors represented on there.

         15  The largest part is business.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: And the total

         17  size of this board is to be determined when you get

         18  some information from the state?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Yes.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay. So, you

         21  are very optimistic.

         22                 What about the Youth Councils?

         23                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: The

         24  Youth Councils are appointed by the local boards,

         25  the Workforce Investment Boards, in agreement with
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          2  the Mayor, in consultation with the Mayor.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Let me ask

          4  one final question, Mr. Chairman, because I am

          5  concerned about the congressional delegation that

          6  was alluded to earlier in terms of perhaps the role

          7  they can play in fixing some of this. Has the

          8  Mayor's Office, have you had any communication with

          9  them in terms of the legislation and the kind of

         10  concerns that you have about the legislation?

         11                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: Not

         12  directly with the New York Congressional New York

         13  Delegation, but our Washington Legislative Office

         14  has been in communication with the U.S. Department

         15  of Labor working with other national organizations

         16  in terms of trying to, you know, upgrade funding to

         17  secure more funding for youth activities under WIA,

         18  and working to see if there is ever the possibility

         19  of the establishment of an independent funding

         20  stream for Summer Youth Employment Program.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Have they

         22  been in touch with the New York Delegation?

         23                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         24  When you say they?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: The
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          2  Washington Office?

          3                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: I

          4  wouldn't know, but I could check on that and get

          5  back in touch with you.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: I get the

          7  sense that the New York Delegation plays a key role

          8  in this, and I get the sense that somehow or another

          9  we need to connect with them, even in terms of the

         10  Administration, in terms of the City Council, in

         11  terms of the advocacy groups to apprise them of

         12  these concerns sooner than later. And, you know, I

         13  would sort of urge that the Administration look into

         14  that so that we can put the best foot forward in

         15  trying to make this a program that is workable.

         16                 Let me just ask -- you had about

         17  42,000 summer youth jobs last summer, and because of

         18  these changes you only anticipate losing 17,000?

         19                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That

         20  is an approximate.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: That is

         22  approximate. That is an optimistic approximate,

         23  would you say?

         24                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: No,

         25  that is an approximate based on the very limited
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          2  knowledge that we have right now.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER PERKINS: Okay, thank

          4  you very much, I appreciate it.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Council Member

          6  Quinn. And we also have been joined by Council

          7  Member Clarke.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Actually, one

          9  of my questions kind of follows along the train of

         10  thought what Council Member Perkins was saying,

         11  which was he raised the Congressional Delegation.

         12                 I am a little surprised and

         13  disappointed that you actually don't know whether

         14  your Washington Office has spoken to the

         15  Congressional Delegation. I think given the urgency

         16  of the situation, I would think there would be more

         17  communication. So, I would encourage us to move in

         18  the direction that Council Member Perkins is talking

         19  about, and I think we should be better coordinated

         20  with advocacy groups and with the Delegation, with

         21  the DC lobbying folks for the City and the City

         22  Council.

         23                 My question, though, was you kept

         24  saying the Mayor can't do X, Y or Z until the

         25  Governor gives the framework or the guidelines, and
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          2  I am sorry if this was raised before I got here,

          3  what communication has the Mayor or the Mayor's

          4  appropriate officers, had with the Governor?

          5                 I mean, is the Mayor putting pressure

          6  on the Governor to try and make that happen or are

          7  we just waiting?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: Our

          9  State Legislative Office up in Albany has been very

         10  proactive in communicating with the New York State

         11  Department of Labor, which acts on behalf of the

         12  Governor regarding this issue.

         13                 So, yes, we have been pushing and

         14  working with the New York State Department of Labor

         15  up until this point. So, there has been a dialogue

         16  with Albany.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: And has that

         18  dialogue moved beyond the kind of agency to agency

         19  dialogue? Has it gotten to -- I mean, you know how

         20  it is in Government, the person who has the least

         21  words in their name is the most important, the

         22  Mayor, the Governor, as opposed to the Assistant

         23  Commissioner to the Assistant of whatever, so I

         24  think it is good the agencies are talking. But has

         25  it risen to the level that people with less words in
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          2  their title are talking to each other? And actually,

          3  has the Mayor spoken to the Governor about this to

          4  kind of say, hey. You know, or however it is they

          5  talk to each other, but say, hey, you know, I need

          6  this done, I am going to be between a rock and a

          7  hard place, can you light a fire under your people?

          8                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

          9  Any, you know, conversations between the Governor

         10  and the Mayor, the Mayor is very well aware of this

         11  issue and it is a primary concern for him.

         12                 Whether or not they have actually

         13  raised the issue on a one-on-one with each other,

         14  you know, over drinks at an event or something --

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Whatever.

         16                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ: I

         17  don't know.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: The Yankee

         19  Parade.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         21  Wherever. I am not privy to that.

         22                 But, you know, the Mayor is

         23  definitely well versed in this, and this is a

         24  priority for him.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: I think then if
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          2  we, you know, if the Mayor could -- the Mayor, as we

          3  all know, has a lot of ways of very effectively

          4  making his priorities known. So, if we could pump up

          5  the Mayor's whatever, you know, making it known on

          6  this, I think that would be helpful. I mean, Albany

          7  usually knows what the Mayor wants, and I could have

          8  missed it, but I haven't heard the Mayor pounding

          9  away at this so-to-speak with the attention that it

         10  sounds like it deserves. I am not an expert on this

         11  issue, but it sounds like it deserves.

         12                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         13  Absolutely. And Council Member, you are absolutely

         14  correct in that and we will, you know, raise it

         15  again with the Mayor and the Mayor's Office and see

         16  if we can pursue some more dialogue.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN: Don't tell him

         18  I asked, though, tell them Council Member Fiala

         19  asked.

         20                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         21  Okay.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And specifically

         23  along those lines, has the City asked the Governor's

         24  Office to simply give us the 15 percent off the top

         25  that the Governor controls, that put 7,000 jobs at
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          2  risk? Just the Governor could just like sign it over

          3  to the City? He is not required to spend the 15

          4  percent on whatever he wants, he is just given that

          5  option, right?

          6                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: There

          7  are certain thing, as John Twoney was explaining,

          8  the 15 percent comes off of three different funding

          9  pools, and they can roll it all up into one big

         10  funding pool and spend more money on youth than they

         11  do on adults or dislocated workers, if they chose

         12  to.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And have we had

         14  that kind of conversation with the State?

         15                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: That

         16  is the conversation we are starting to have with the

         17  State.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         19                 Thank you very much for your

         20  testimony.

         21                 ASSISTANT COMMISSIONER RODRIGUEZ:

         22  Thank you.

         23                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Thank

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: You can expect
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          2  this to come up in January when we do the budget

          3  hearings. So, we will be looking for an update on

          4  this at the first opportunity.

          5                 ASSOCIATE COMMISSIONER LEHMAN: Duly

          6  noted.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you.

          8                 The Department of Labor of the United

          9  States of America is next.

         10                 And by the way, just while they are

         11  coming up, after that we are going to hear from Mr.

         12  Saft, who is the Chairman of the Private Industry

         13  Council.

         14                 Just push the button.

         15                 MR. McKENNA: Good morning. My name is

         16  Thomas McKenna, I am with the United States

         17  Department of Labor, New York Regional Office. I

         18  work in the Office of Training Employment Services,

         19  which has oversight over JTPA. I appreciate the

         20  opportunity to make a presentation here before you

         21  Council Members.

         22                 Basically, I would like to start off

         23  by saying that the Employment Training

         24  Administration of the United States Department of

         25  Labor remains committed to a Summer Youth Employment
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          2  Program. Our regulations do require that local

          3  Workforce Investment Boards offer summer youth

          4  employment opportunities.

          5                 However, as there is only one youth

          6  funding stream under the Workforce Investment Act,

          7  as it has become apparent, it is up to the local

          8  boards to determine how much of the available youth

          9  funds will be used for summer activities.

         10                 And of course, this is a change from

         11  JTPA where you had your IIB allocation for summer

         12  and your IIC allocation for year-round youth.

         13                 Youth performance measures, again, as

         14  has already been mentioned, now apply across the

         15  Board to all of your participants in the Youth

         16  Program, and this has also been mentioned that 30

         17  percent of all youth funds must be utilized for

         18  out-of-school youth at a minimum.

         19                 Up to five percent of all youth

         20  participants served by youth programs may be

         21  individuals who do not meet the income criteria for

         22  eligible youth, but meet one of the specified list

         23  of barriers that is listed in our interim

         24  regulations.

         25                 Under JTPA for the year-round youth,
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          2  that window of opportunity was ten percent.

          3                 As has been mentioned quite a lot

          4  also, localities by formula now get 85 percent of

          5  youth dollars, there is the Governor's 15 percent

          6  reserve. Under JTPA the summer money went all to the

          7  localities, whereas with year-round youth, 82

          8  percent of the monies went to the localities.

          9                 At the local level, the local

         10  Workforce Investment Board areas can use up to ten

         11  percent of their funds for administrative cost,

         12  whereas previously under JTPA at the local level was

         13  15 percent.

         14                 Now, although ETA, the Employment

         15  Training Administration, has been stressing the need

         16  to link occupational and academic learning with the

         17  Summer Youth Employment Program, our regulations now

         18  explicitly make clear that such linkage is required.

         19  And as has been previously mentioned the regulations

         20  make clear now that this is not a stand alone

         21  program anymore.

         22                 A youth's participation in the Summer

         23  Youth Employment Program should be integrated into a

         24  comprehensive strategy for addressing the youth's

         25  employment and training needs.
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          2                 Also, our regulations require that

          3  youth now be provided with a minimum of 12 months of

          4  follow-up services.

          5                 However, our regulations also

          6  indicate that these follow-up services may be less

          7  intensive than follow-up services given to

          8  year-round youth programs.

          9                 Local chief elected officials and the

         10  local Workforce Investment Boards are responsible

         11  for ensuring that summer youth employment

         12  opportunities are provided for youth.

         13                 The legislation requires that each

         14  local board have a youth council. Interestingly

         15  enough, there is no requirement for State Youth

         16  Council, but there is requirements that

         17  representatives of individuals and organizations

         18  that have experience with respect to youth

         19  activities must be in the State board.

         20                 So there must be at least two

         21  youth-related representatives on the state board,

         22  and the State if it wants may have a youth council,

         23  but there is no requirement. At the local level

         24  there must be a youth council, and our law and

         25  interim regulations make clear who must be on that
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          2  board.

          3                 Okay, the State, as has been

          4  mentioned, must provide the federal government with

          5  a WIA plan, and that plan must describe strategies

          6  regarding comprehensive services to youth, including

          7  participants in the Summer Youth Employment Program.

          8  That is one of the required ten elements of the

          9  Youth Program under WIA.

         10                 Now, the youth council will deal with

         11  the total youth program, it is appointed by the

         12  local Workforce Investment Board in cooperation with

         13  the local chief elected official, which in New York

         14  City of course would be the Mayor.

         15                 The youth council helps develop the

         16  portions of the local plan that pertain to youth,

         17  recommend eligible providers of youth activities to

         18  be awarded grants of contracts on a competitive

         19  basis by the local board, conducts oversight of

         20  providers of youth activities and coordinates youth

         21  activities which are mentioned in the WIA

         22  legislation.

         23                 As I mentioned, the WIA legislation

         24  specifies who should be on the youth council, but

         25  note, however, the youth council is a subgroup of
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          2  the Board and that the local Workforce Investment

          3  Board, as well as the local chief executive

          4  official, the Mayor, would retain ultimate

          5  responsibility for the operation of the youth

          6  program.

          7                 Let me give you a little bit of

          8  information about where we are in terms of our

          9  submission of WIA plans.

         10                 As we are well aware, states

         11  generally start activities related to Summer Youth

         12  Employment Programs in the month of April. However,

         13  our states are not required to submit a full plan

         14  until July 1st, 2000.

         15                 Under WIA funds for youth activities,

         16  however, may be made available for obligation

         17  beginning April 1st, 2000, despite the fact that

         18  states don't have to start WIA formerly until July

         19  1st.

         20                 However, if you don't have an

         21  approved WIA plan you are not going to be given

         22  funds April 1st.

         23                 Many states, including New York, have

         24  not made early submissions of the WIA plan. However,

         25  as has been mentioned, ETA has developed options for
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          2  submitting state plans for youth activities, which

          3  will allow states to access youth funds early, in

          4  April, for example.

          5                 Now, the federal Department of Labor

          6  in our region issued a Regional Information

          7  Bulletin, No. 11-99, which outlined different

          8  options for early submission of a transmission plan

          9  for youth activities, which New York State

         10  apparently is working on.

         11                 But, no, if the state does not have

         12  either full WIA plan approval, or some type of

         13  transitional approval for youth plans by April 1st,

         14  then localities are going to have to use any left

         15  over JTPA funds for the initial phase of the youth

         16  planning activity until July 1st.

         17                 Today, by the way, 20 states have

         18  submitted the WIA plans for review, six states

         19  became fully operational, that includes their youth

         20  activities, between July 1st and September 30, a

         21  seventh state has become fully operational on

         22  January 1st. A number of other states have been

         23  approved for transitional programs, in general,

         24  including New Jersey, which means some elements of

         25  their plans were approved, and a timetable was for
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          2  them to implement other parts of the plan.

          3                 New York State, on the other hand,

          4  does not intend to submit a full WIA plan until

          5  April 1st, 2000, although again our understanding is

          6  New York is working on at least the youth portion of

          7  a plan.

          8                 We would have to receive the youth

          9  plan by January 1st in order to have the full 90-day

         10  review period that the federal government is

         11  entitled to, in order for this youth plan to be

         12  approved on April 1st.

         13                 That doesn't mean if it comes in a

         14  little later it still might not be approved, we are

         15  only saying we can only guarantee approval by April

         16  1st, so that should get you new WIA money, if we get

         17  the plan by January 1st.

         18                 Basically speaking, New York has

         19  moved slowly to take steps towards implementing WIA,

         20  and it has been mentioned, the State Workforce

         21  Investment Board was only apparently constituted

         22  recently, and our information, as others have

         23  stated, is that the board has not met yet, and the

         24  State Board will need to meet soon and develop

         25  policy criteria for youth programs, as well as
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          2  guidance for the creation of the local youth

          3  councils in order to assure effective summer youth

          4  program operation.

          5                 And that concludes my testimony and

          6  if you have any questions, I will be glad to answer

          7  them.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: First of all,

          9  thank you for coming down here today and shedding

         10  some light on this. I have a few questions.

         11                 First of all, when were the

         12  Department of Labor Regulations final?

         13                 MR. McKENNA: We operate under interim

         14  regulations, which these regulations, of which I

         15  have a copy here, came out on April 15th, of 1999.

         16                 Our final regulations are supposed to

         17  be out by the end of this month, although I frankly

         18  can't guarantee that is going to occur.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         20                 MR. McKENNA: With regard to the youth

         21  plan, that regional bulletin I mentioned, that came

         22  out on September 13th.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Are the interim

         24  regulations, would those be considered binding in

         25  effect at this point?
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          2                 MR. McKENNA: Yes. And as I mentioned,

          3  a number of states have received full plan approval

          4  under those interim regulations.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: By the way, are

          6  those other plans from the other states, are those

          7  available to New York City and New York State, if

          8  they wanted to see what an approved plan looked

          9  like?

         10                 MR. McKENNA: Yes. I believe there are

         11  web sites where they are posted.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And in order --

         13  there was some testimony earlier today that it might

         14  be possible to access the youth funds March 1st. I

         15  thought I heard you say April 1st, can you clarify

         16  that for us?

         17                 MR. McKENNA: As far as I know, the

         18  date for submission of the plans in order to receive

         19  monies is April 1st, I am not familiar with the

         20  March date. Unless it is something new that I am not

         21  aware of.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And the only way

         23  you can guarantee, assuming that everything gets

         24  approved --

         25                 MR. McKENNA: Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: That April 1 date

          3  would be if you had the plan by January 1st.

          4                 MR. McKENNA: That's right. That is

          5  not to say if it is a little late you still might

          6  not get approval, but we will only guarantee it if

          7  it is in by January 1st.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: But that plan

          9  can't be submitted until it has been approved by the

         10  City Board, which hasn't been constituted yet,

         11  because it doesn't have the guidelines from the

         12  Governor as to who needs to be appointed to it, and

         13  part of this stuff isn't going to happen until

         14  either December 15th or December 31st.

         15                 MR. McKENNA: Well, let me make clear,

         16  I am talking about a state plan.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         18                 MR. McKENNA: Our relationship is with

         19  the New York State Department of Labor as a primary

         20  grantee.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay.

         22                 MR. McKENNA: And the State plan has

         23  to be into us by January 1st, in order to get

         24  funding by April 1st. And we assume that the State

         25  is working with localities when they are drawing up
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          2  their state plan.

          3                 Obviously, as you pointed out, the

          4  State Board has not even met and therefore a

          5  detailed criteria has not gone out to the local

          6  areas, so that makes them difficult for them to

          7  operate, and we understand that.

          8                 However, the only requirement is that

          9  we get a state plan by January 1st.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: But in order for

         11  the State to submit their plan, are they legally

         12  required to have a City plan?

         13                 MR. McKENNA: To the best of my

         14  knowledge, not at the date of submission, but I

         15  think we do indicate that there should be local

         16  consultation in developing a plan.

         17                 Certainly when the full plan is

         18  approved, there should by that point be a local plan

         19  that is approved. That would be for the full plan.

         20                 But for this interim plan, it is not

         21  totally clear that you have to have a local plan

         22  approved in order to submit an interim plan, at

         23  least at the time of submission.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Let me just

         25  interrupt our proceedings for one second to welcome
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          2  a fourth grade class from PS 185 in Brooklyn, in

          3  Council Member Golden's district, and we want to

          4  welcome them to City Hall today. I am putting that

          5  on the official record of the City Council, so you

          6  are welcome to applaud for yourselves up there. We

          7  will applaud you as well.

          8                 And I just want to tell our young

          9  people, this is the Youth Services

         10  Committee of the City Council, so you have come at a

         11  good time. My name is Ken Fisher, I am also from

         12  Brooklyn.

         13                 What we are having a hearing on is a

         14  program that we have in New York City to give

         15  teenagers jobs in the summertime, and we are asking

         16  some questions as to whether or not we are going to

         17  be able to give as many young people jobs next

         18  summer as we had last summer because we have changed

         19  the way we pay for those jobs. And also, you know,

         20  sometimes your parents tell you you have to plan

         21  ahead, so you have got the Thanksgiving break but

         22  don't wait until Sunday night to start doing your

         23  homework, because you are going to want to watch

         24  your favorite TV show and it is going to be too

         25  late, so maybe you should do some on Friday or
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          2  Saturday. Well, sometimes the government has the

          3  same kind of problem, where the deadline seems way

          4  off when you start and then as it gets closer you

          5  have to do even more and more in order to be able to

          6  catch up. So that is what we are talking about.

          7                 Again, welcome to City Hall.

          8                 MR. McKENNA: Councilman Fisher, let

          9  me add that our expectation would be that if New

         10  York State does get an interim youth plan approval,

         11  then the localities obviously would have to be ready

         12  April 1st in order to run a program, if you are

         13  going to get an allotment. So, that would be our

         14  expectation.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: We heard some

         16  testimony about the arithmetic of WIA, that this 15

         17  percent off the top that is reserved to the Chief

         18  Executive Office of the State, the Governor --

         19                 MR. McKENNA: Yes.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: That unless those

         21  funds are made available to supplement the funding

         22  that we otherwise anticipate, that that could result

         23  in the loss of approximately 7,000 openings this

         24  summer. Does that -- are we in agreement on that

         25  piece? We will do that piece first.
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          2                 MR. McKENNA: Well, I am not going to

          3  go to an exact number. I think it is obvious that if

          4  we have more a more intensive program with regard to

          5  summer youth, linking them to academic and

          6  occupational learning, that you are going to be

          7  spending more money per person.

          8                 With regard to the 15 percent, as I

          9  think has been alluded to, the 15 percent applies

         10  not only to the youth program but also to our adults

         11  dislocated worker funding streams, so that in a

         12  sense you have a pool created and that monies could

         13  actually go more towards say adults or youth, you

         14  know, depending on the Governor's decision.

         15                 But, you know, there has been some

         16  conversation on, well, maybe we can send some of

         17  that money down to the localities. I think I need to

         18  point out that the state has given five percent

         19  admin out of the total grant and that comes out of

         20  that 15 percent or a third of that.

         21                 Also, if they want to have any

         22  technical assistance funds, or they may use it for

         23  incentives, or special statewide programs, although

         24  it is ultimately the Governor's decision, I would

         25  like to point out there are a lot of possible uses
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          2  for that 15 percent money.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Are you the

          4  person in DOL New York office that is dealing with

          5  -- I assume that is the reason you are here today,

          6  you are the most directly involved with all of this

          7  stuff?

          8                 MR. McKENNA: Well, there actually are

          9  a group of people, so I wouldn't say there is

         10  necessarily anyone involved in it. There are a

         11  number of people in the JTPA unit who are involved

         12  with these matters.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Can you tell us,

         14  has that group been dealing directly with the City

         15  on these issues? Or do you deal only with the State?

         16                 MR. McKENNA: We deal primarily with

         17  the State.

         18                 We have had some input from the City.

         19  Our Regional Administrator, Marilyn Shea, has

         20  expressed concern to New York State about the pace

         21  of plan development, particularly with regard to the

         22  delay and creation of the state board, because the

         23  State board is considered central in developing

         24  policy guidance for the local units.

         25                 So, we have been aware of the slow
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          2  movement of New York State toward creation of a

          3  State Board and expressed our concern, and our

          4  Washington office is, of course, concerned as well.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is it fair to say

          6  that the City's legislative offices have been in

          7  constant contact with the United States Department

          8  of Labor on this?

          9                 MR. McKENNA: Well, again, I can only

         10  speak for our regional office. We have had some

         11  contact with, I don't know if I will use the phrase

         12  constant contact, but there has been some degree of

         13  contact.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Is there anything

         15  that the City of New York can be doing now?

         16                 We have heard this morning they,

         17  apparently some time since November 10th created an

         18  interagency task force on this, and are now going to

         19  start preparing a plan, and I guess they have

         20  started to think about who they might appoint to a

         21  board and if they ever find out who the board is

         22  supposed to be. But are there other things that the

         23  City of New York should be doing now that would

         24  ensure that we have a better chance of success come

         25  either April 1st or next summer? After all, what
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          2  this is really all about are the jobs for the kids

          3  and the opportunities for the kids. It is not about

          4  whether we are all doing our jobs well, it is about

          5  whether or not the kids are going to be a break. So

          6  is there anything that the City of New York should

          7  be doing now that you could recommend?

          8                 MR. McKENNA: Well, again, they

          9  obviously need to be familiar with the interim

         10  regulations in the law and the requirements, and

         11  certainly they should be thinking about who is on

         12  the Board.

         13                 As has been pointed out, the State

         14  Board has not designated the workforce areas yet, I

         15  guess there is an assumption again that New York

         16  City would be a workforce area, but again that would

         17  be up to the state board to make that determination.

         18                 Assuming New York City is one, has a

         19  workforce investment board, again the City might be

         20  wanting to think about who would be on that board.

         21  You might be wanting to think about activities that

         22  will be occurring for the summer and year-round

         23  youth and so on.

         24                 So, those are the things the City

         25  could do. But in terms of formally constituting the
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          2  board, it would be difficult to do it without the

          3  state indicating what the areas are and issuing

          4  guidelines.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you.

          6  Council Member Clarke had a question.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

          8  Chairman. I came in late so if these questions were

          9  asked before, although you came up since I came in

         10  just for clarification. When there was a change in

         11  the legislation, was it meant to make things more

         12  effective in terms of youth employment, number one?

         13                 And how then will these workforce

         14  areas be determined, number two?

         15                 Looking at New York City and knowing

         16  areas in which there are high unemployment among

         17  youth to begin with, including many of our youth who

         18  have some record of conviction and find it hard to

         19  find employment, can you tell me, are there any

         20  carveouts, is there anything the State and the City

         21  should do in order to focus on that youth that will

         22  not have any academic ties to whatever the program

         23  might be.

         24                 MR. McKENNA: Okay. Again, the

         25  creation of workforce areas are recommended by the
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          2  Governor and the state workforce board. They

          3  certainly should be consulting with localities in

          4  terms of creation of these areas. And actually, as I

          5  recall, the law would really mandate that areas

          6  above a certain population for at least two years

          7  could get automatic designation if they had been a

          8  service delivery area beforehand, and I think that

          9  would apply certainly to New York City.

         10                 However, you asked if the idea was

         11  would this be a more efficient operation?

         12                 Well, one of the ideas was to give

         13  more flexibility to local areas, and that is why

         14  maybe things didn't work out quite the way you

         15  wanted here, but in terms of how much resources to

         16  devote to summer youth and year-round youth, and

         17  make decisions on-- I mean, one key decision you

         18  always have to make is how much do I spend on one

         19  individual when I could spend maybe less on that

         20  individual and more on another, but maybe the

         21  outcomes for those individuals, two individuals

         22  would not be as good as if I spent more money on

         23  this one particular individual.

         24                 I mean, there are a lot of decisions

         25  that you have to make on spending once you are that
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          2  authority.

          3                 Under the Workforce Investment Act, a

          4  one-stop system is created which will integrate

          5  adult dislocated workers and youth programs and

          6  these one-stop centers, and which will try to devise

          7  services from a multitude of programs, a long list

          8  of number of one-stop partners that would

          9  participate in these one-stop centers, so that the

         10  idea is hopefully that more services will be brought

         11  to bear for participants in the programs.

         12                 Also, there will be a list of vendors

         13  and we stress the need for customer information,

         14  that they know how these vendors perform, and that

         15  includes the Youth Program, so they make intelligent

         16  choices when they go into training.

         17                 So, those are some of the features of

         18  our program.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Because the

         20  federal government will at some point in time have

         21  the final say as to whether a locality or a state

         22  fulfills the mandate and whether the funding comes,

         23  because there is always a tail to whatever the money

         24  is, or something is tied to it. Are states and

         25  localities given the flexibility to focus on a
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          2  population of youth that may need services even more

          3  than who you envision at the point in time that it

          4  was written, will they be given that flexibility?

          5                 MR. McKENNA: It is correct that we

          6  have to give final authority to state plan, and

          7  generally when we review the plans we make sure that

          8  the plans conform to the legislative requirements,

          9  and the regulatory requirements.

         10                 Basically there are certain key

         11  program elements.  For a youth program there are ten

         12  key program elements that are listed in the law, and

         13  there is an income criteria for use, generally the

         14  federal poverty level, in order to participate in

         15  the program. So, it is geared towards low-income

         16  youth, and it is also geared toward youth for

         17  certain barriers. So that, as I mentioned, there is

         18  five percent window so that even if you don't fall

         19  under the poverty criteria, you could still

         20  participate in the program if you have certain

         21  barriers, say you are an ex-offender, say you have

         22  substance abuse problems, pregnant or parenting teen

         23  and so on.

         24                 So, there is room for local

         25  flexibility. There is a waiver program under this
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          2  legislation, and this program is geared to

          3  low-income youth, and youth with barriers to

          4  employment.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

          6  much.

          7                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

          9  much, sir.

         10                 MR. McKENNA: Okay, thank you.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Stuart Saft. And

         12  then after Mr. Saft concludes his testimony, we have

         13  four organizations that are involved in providing

         14  services. Just let me identify them: Cypress Hills,

         15  United Neighborhood Houses, Simpson Street, and

         16  Mosholu Montefiore.

         17                 What we will do after Mr. Saft is I

         18  will ask the four of them to come up as a panel so

         19  we can hear what they have to say. If there is

         20  anybody else who is here to testify in connection

         21  with this matter, please make sure you see the

         22  Sergeant-At-Arms to fill out a witness slip, and we

         23  appreciate everyone's attendance today.

         24                 Sir, you can proceed.

         25                 MR. SAFT: Thank you.
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          2                 I am Stuart Saft, Chairman and Chief

          3  Executive Officer of the Private Industry Council

          4  for the City of New York, which is responsible for

          5  the federal Job Training Partnership Act funds

          6  coming to New York City.

          7                 PIC also serves as a conduit between

          8  private sector employers and the employment and

          9  training community and is assisting the

         10  Administration in developing the New York City

         11  Workforce Investment System, mandated by the federal

         12  workforce investment act.

         13                 Prior to becoming PIC chair, I was

         14  co-chair of the PIC's workforce development task

         15  force which at the request of the Administration

         16  began exploring the future of worker training in New

         17  York long before Congress enacted WIA.

         18                 Initially I want to thank you for

         19  holding this hearing on such an important issue as

         20  SYEP and allowing me to speak.

         21                 My reason for attending today's

         22  hearing is to discuss the work we have been doing to

         23  prepare New York City for July 1st, 2000, the

         24  effective date of WIA. I would like to begin by

         25  noting the obvious: that WIA is a flawed piece of
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          2  legislation, which does not consider the size and

          3  diversity of America's largest urban area,

          4  particularly New York City.

          5                 The act provides neither direction

          6  nor resources for establishing a truly coordinated

          7  workforce development system, but mandates that it

          8  be created or the City will lose its federal

          9  funding.

         10                 Nevertheless, we have been working

         11  for over a year with the City Administration for

         12  various agencies, numerous community-based

         13  organizations and not-for-profits, in order to

         14  develop a coordinated integrated workforce

         15  investment system that provides assistance and

         16  guidance to all employment training and education

         17  programs and services and seeks to assure that

         18  capability will exist between a labor pool and

         19  employer demands.

         20                 Importantly, it must be a system that

         21  recognizes the unique nature of each of New York

         22  City's neighborhoods and the differing requirements

         23  of each of its boroughs, while supporting the City's

         24  centry-old tradition of helping those requiring

         25  assistance.
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          2                 Notwithstanding the importance of the

          3  entire Workforce Investment System, including the

          4  Workforce Investment Board, one-stop career centers

          5  and youth councils mandated by WIA, our immediate

          6  concern has been the Summer Youth Employment Program

          7  because of its importance to our residents and the

          8  lead time necessary for the system to become

          9  operational.

         10                 The problem we are facing is that

         11  although WIA, which is successor to the Job Training

         12  Partnership Act, contains provisions that ultimately

         13  will benefit youth, it precludes stand-alone

         14  programs such as the Summer Youth Employment

         15  Program.

         16                 Due to the serious potential problems

         17  that the elimination of the SYEP could have in New

         18  York next summer, we have been meeting for several

         19  weeks with the staff of affected City agencies in an

         20  attempt to find creative solutions to the problem.

         21                 At the same time we have spoken to

         22  representatives of the U.S. Department of Labor in

         23  the hope of phasing in this aspect of WIA, in order

         24  to provide the workforce investment system an

         25  opportunity to deal with this problem in the context
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          2  of the overall system.

          3                 At the present time we are assuming

          4  that we will receive no assistance from the federal

          5  government in resolving this problem.

          6                 I should also note that we are

          7  conferring with PIC and WIB chairs in other large

          8  cities to determine if they have an innovative

          9  solution to this problem, but alas they are

         10  struggling with it as much as we are and we seem to

         11  be further along in the process than others.

         12                 Obviously, as the PIC we are

         13  exploring ways of involving the private sector in

         14  solving this problem. Among the programs we are

         15  considering, are providing private sector

         16  internships and work study programs.

         17                 As an attorney involved in

         18  cooperatives, condominiums and affordable housing

         19  issues, I represent the residents at Worldwide

         20  Plaza, which approximately eight years ago formed

         21  Worldwide Student Outreach to provide internships

         22  and scholarships to the students at three high

         23  schools that are in the same area as Worldwide

         24  Plaza. This program has been incredibly successful

         25  for both students in the local businesses and we are
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          2  considering using this program as a model to place

          3  students as interns with private sector employers

          4  during the summer, where the students will learn job

          5  skills and be paid by their employers rather than

          6  through public funds.

          7                 We are also considering the

          8  feasibility of having public school spending the

          9  summer improving their study skills and taking

         10  college preparatory courses for half a day and then

         11  interning with not-for-profits for the other half.

         12                 Each of these programs, as well as

         13  the discussions we are having with the various city

         14  agencies are still in their formative stages, and

         15  although there is little doubt that the problem will

         16  be solved by the summer of 2001, we are aggressively

         17  seeking solutions for the summer of 2000.

         18                 We will continue to enlist private

         19  sector support to create summer and year-round

         20  experience opportunities for youth, which provide

         21  intellectual and leadership development work

         22  preparation, basic skills training and mentoring.

         23                 We certainly would appreciate any

         24  input that you would have with regard to dealing

         25  with what could be a very troubling situation.
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          2                 I look forward to working with your

          3  Committee to ensure that adequate services and

          4  funding are available to support the goals and

          5  requirements of WIA.

          6                 Finally, I would like to thank you

          7  again for holding this hearing on this very

          8  important issue, which until now has not received

          9  much attention.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you for

         11  your testimony.

         12                 I think this is the first time that

         13  the PIC has appeared before the Youth Committee, at

         14  least while I have been the Chairman of it, and I

         15  was wondering if you could address three points for

         16  me.

         17                 One is to elaborate a little bit on

         18  what the Private Industry Council is; secondly, what

         19  role it plays, specifically with respect to SYEP, at

         20  least up until now; and thirdly, once WIA is fully

         21  implemented, what is the role of PIC and what will

         22  its relationship be to the City Workforce Investment

         23  Board?

         24                 MR. SAFT: The PIC goes out of

         25  existence on June 30th, 2000, because it was formed
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          2  as part of the Job Training Partnership Act. The PIC

          3  has oversight responsibility with regard to the

          4  funds that come into New York City from the federal

          5  government for job training, which over the years

          6  has been in the range of about $170 million.

          7                 The PIC has been working very closely

          8  over the years with the Department of Employment,

          9  who has direct responsibility for the SYEP program.

         10                 Because the Workforce Investment Act

         11  is the successor to the Job Training Partnership

         12  Act, the PIC has taken the lead in formulating what

         13  New York City's plan should look like. And in that

         14  regard, I should note that I have been meeting, I am

         15  the one that has been meeting continuously with

         16  Marilyn Shea, the Regional Administrator for the

         17  U.S. Department of Labor, as well as Jim McGowan,

         18  the New York State Commissioner of the Department of

         19  Labor, and Vic Tosi, who is Chairman of the Job

         20  Training Partnership Council, in the hopes of having

         21  the City ready for the implementation of the

         22  Workforce Investment Act, even before the state

         23  legislation was finalized.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: And what do you

         25  think the chances are?
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          2                 MR. SAFT: Believe it or not, we will

          3  be ready.

          4                 The Mayor has a great many options as

          5  to what he can do. One of the simplest options is to

          6  merely take the Private Industry Council and convert

          7  it into the Workforce Investment Board. That is a

          8  simple solution.

          9                 What we have done over the last year,

         10  because this is such a complicated situation, but

         11  the opportunity to improve worker training in New

         12  York is so great, is that we have examined the

         13  entire structure of the workforce development system

         14  in New York, and we are trying to come out with

         15  something that is more innovative than simply

         16  complying with the requirements of the Workforce

         17  Investment Act.

         18                 Starting four years ago, when there

         19  was general recognition in congress that JTPA needed

         20  to be replaced, the PIC's workforce development task

         21  force began to hold meetings and focus groups with

         22  various parties interested in worker training in New

         23  York, to see what wasn't working in the system and

         24  what could be improved upon.

         25                 We have used that knowledge to
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          2  prepare proposals that can easily put into effect

          3  once the various state officials have completed

          4  putting together the state board and issue the

          5  regulations for setting up the City boards.

          6                 We are not waiting for March 30th,

          7  2000 to get a letter from the state saying, well, we

          8  are now ready, what are you going to do?

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: It sounds like

         10  you are way ahead of City Department of Employment

         11  in terms of addressing some of these issues.

         12                 MR. SAFT: We have been working with

         13  all of the City agencies, most specifically the

         14  Department of Employment, in putting together a

         15  comprehensive coordinated and integrated workforce

         16  investment system, one that focuses on the needs of

         17  both adults and youth throughout the City.

         18                 We have also been working with the

         19  Board of Education and CUNY, because one the flaws

         20  under the old system is that everybody was doing

         21  their own thing, and what we would like to see under

         22  the new system is a coordinated effort with less

         23  duplication and more direction, so that the people

         24  who need to be served can in fact be served.

         25                 The concept behind the Workforce
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          2  Investment Act, unlike other legislation, is that it

          3  is supposed to provide a learning opportunity for

          4  people from childhood through retirement and beyond.

          5  And frankly, the idea behind the one-stop career

          6  centers is that any person in any community can go

          7  into a one-stop career center, there are no wrong

          8  doors. Once they enter into the career center, they

          9  can get assessment, they can get information on job

         10  training, they can find what jobs are available. So,

         11  it is a much more broadly based system than was

         12  previously utilized.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Are you, or is

         14  somebody from the PIC, on this interagency task

         15  force that we were told was established some time in

         16  the last couple of weeks?

         17                 MR. SAFT: Yes.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Do you happen to

         19  know when it was established or when were you asked

         20  to serve on it?

         21                 MR. SAFT: It was a couple of weeks

         22  ago. I can't be specific.

         23                 But as I have indicated, we have been

         24  working on our plans for well over a year.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: All right.
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          2                 Council Member Clarke.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you very

          4  much.

          5                 I guess I should say I am a little

          6  bit encouraged, but just based on that, can you tell

          7  me what provisions are being made as we look at the

          8  variety of young people in the City of New York,

          9  those who would become members of youth gangs who

         10  need to be engaged and given proper training, the

         11  uneducated youth who became discouraged and either

         12  dropped out of school, including a group of young

         13  people that I am always close to and they are

         14  considered immigrant youth who have just come and

         15  don't know their way yet and can either get caught

         16  up in the good or the bad of what happens; are there

         17  any provisions for any engagement training into

         18  making productive lives out of lives that you and I

         19  can sometimes feel marginalized, we feel that they

         20  are not going to make it but knowing that brain is

         21  brain and it doesn't matter in whose head it is, if

         22  you get it properly trained and focused can make a

         23  great contribution to this nation?

         24                 MR. SAFT: Yes, you are absolutely

         25  right. And frankly, my biggest fear is that in
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          2  future years we will have a country with a very

          3  small group of highly educated people and a large

          4  group of functionally uneducated people, in a

          5  society that is being driven by technology rather

          6  than blue collar jobs.

          7                 Putting the overall plan together was

          8  not something that we did in the abstract. What I

          9  did in working towards this point is going out to

         10  various community-based organizations, meeting with

         11  them, seeing how they operate their programs to get

         12  a better understanding of what needed to be done.

         13                 In that regard the Private Industry

         14  Council had held several meetings this year and has

         15  put together groups of CBOs in order to maximize

         16  what they can do.

         17                 We have also put together industry

         18  advisory councils for the various business

         19  industries in New York so that we can better follow

         20  what they expect their job needs are going to be,

         21  not next year but five years and ten years from now.

         22                 One of the problems we have seen in

         23  the past is that this has been done more or less in

         24  the abstract, people go and get job training and

         25  there are no jobs left. We want to be in a position
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          2  where we can predict what is going to be needed in

          3  years to come so people can get the correct

          4  training.

          5                 As far as young people are concerned,

          6  that is one of the reasons for my meeting with the

          7  Board of Education and with CUNY because they should

          8  be part of the overall system.

          9                 I have also been meeting with some of

         10  the Borough Presidents because they have the best

         11  understanding of what is happening in the

         12  communities.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Some members of

         14  the Council might take issue with that. Our offices

         15  are available to you as well.

         16                 MR. SAFT: Yes, you are absolutely

         17  right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: You notice I

         19  didn't make a comment on that, except to say to you,

         20  I came to the City Council because some creative and

         21  innovative people, probably in 1989 who considered

         22  the Charter revision, thought that all communities

         23  should be sitting at this table making some decision

         24  about the lives of people in those communities, so

         25  as an immigrant woman who ended up here trying to
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          2  make a contribution to all New Yorkers, I want to

          3  make sure that communities are not marginalized, and

          4  that the potential of no community is marginalized,

          5  and that therefore youth in all neighborhoods, in

          6  all communities and that leads me to asking of the

          7  question, are there any youth being engaged for

          8  their input and for their understanding of what

          9  leads to their development. Young people listen to

         10  young people more than they listen to you and I.

         11                 MR. SAFT: We haven't as yet, but we

         12  plan to once the boards are functioning. And point

         13  of fact, the Youth Council Board will also have

         14  parent membership on it because to a large extent we

         15  think parents have a good feel for the needs of

         16  their youngsters.

         17                 I should also point that I come to my

         18  position from a very unique perspective, having been

         19  brought up in Brooklyn and Queens, gone to PS 138

         20  and Andrew Jackson High School.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: PS 138, so did

         22  my children.

         23                 MR. SAFT: I am obviously older than

         24  they. And having done affordable housing situations

         25  throughout the five boroughs, I certainly realize
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          2  that in fact this is five cities that have been

          3  consolidated rather than one big City.

          4                 And in putting together the Workforce

          5  Investment Board, the Youth Council and the

          6  one-stop, there is a great deal of recognition of

          7  the different nature of these communities that make

          8  up New York City. So that won't be lost in a one

          9  size fits all program that would in fact lose a lot

         10  of kids and that is the one thing we want to avoid

         11  happening.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Let me just

         13  thank you for your vision. And thank you, Mr.

         14  Chairman.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you.

         16                 Just one last follow-up question: In

         17  the consultation process that you have been engaged

         18  in for the anticipation of what we are facing, have

         19  you met with the Youth Employment Contractors

         20  Coalition? Have you had conversations with them

         21  about how this is going to impact on them in a

         22  practical way and their ability to meet their

         23  objectives?

         24                 MR. SAFT: Well, we have met with a

         25  number of the contractors in terms of putting
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          2  together what the Youth Council will look like.

          3                 In terms of this particular summer,

          4  the Summer of 2000, what we have focused on mostly

          5  is trying to be in the position where we could line

          6  up thousands of private sector jobs, believing that

          7  that is probably the best use of the Private

          8  Industry Council in the short run.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you very

         10  much.

         11                 MR. SAFT: Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Okay,

         13  representatives from Mosholu Montefiore Community

         14  Center, United Neighborhood Houses, Cypress Hills

         15  LDC, and Simpson Street Development Association.

         16                 Okay, we would like to proceed. We

         17  will hear from each of you seriatim and you can

         18  start however, you can agree amongst yourselves.

         19                 The light should be off. Things in

         20  government are sometimes deceiving. When the light

         21  is off, the mike is on.

         22                 MS. KEEL-WILLIAMS: Distinguished

         23  panel members and guests, I am Mildred

         24  Keel-Williams, I represent Cypress Hills Local

         25  Development Corporation. We have worked for the past
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          2  11 years as a director of Economic Development

          3  Programs.

          4                 In this capacity I have overseen

          5  eight summer youth employment programs. I am also a

          6  longstanding member of the Summer Youth Employment

          7  Program Contractor Coalition. Right now I serve as

          8  the First Vice Chair.

          9                 In 1969, at the age of 15, I got my

         10  only City-sponsored summer job through Manpower. I

         11  lined up with several thousand youth to take

         12  pictures on Pitkin Avenue in Brownsville. My picture

         13  and all the other required documentation was

         14  processed by the projects located on Sutter Avenue,

         15  near Junius Street, a good 15, 20 minute bus ride

         16  from where I was living in East New York, and I have

         17  my working papers.

         18                 Cypress Hills Local Development

         19  Corporation established a Summer Youth Employment

         20  Program in 1991, with the New York City Department

         21  of Employment to centralize the distance many of our

         22  youth had to cover in order to participate in the

         23  program.

         24                 Prior to the Cypress Hills SYEP,

         25  youth traveled to the ends of our neighborhood to
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          2  Italian America and East New York Development

          3  Corporation.

          4                 Today the three agencies provide

          5  approximately 25,000 jobs annually to disadvantaged

          6  youth.

          7                 SYEP is an important bridge to

          8  employment for inner-city youth. Unlike our Council

          9  parts in upstate New York and across the country,

         10  SYEP is the largest vehicle for employment in New

         11  York City for our Youth.

         12                 Typically, half of the youth that

         13  apply to SYEP get jobs. Last year, as you heard

         14  before, approximately 48,000 of the 90,000 seeking

         15  work with SYEP were employed.

         16                 Approximately 60 organizations

         17  Citywide, and they are represented through the

         18  Coalition, they have contracts with DOE, these

         19  organizations maintained at least 3,000 Work Sponsor

         20  Relationships in their respective neighborhoods.

         21                 Two years ago Cypress Hills placed

         22  396 workers at 100 sites. Last year we worked with

         23  getting 375 youth placed at 46 different sites in

         24  Brooklyn.

         25                 The various sites where eligible
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          2  youth work run the gamut as documented by the films

          3  produced by Skyline Communications, which have been

          4  pretty much on exposition at our annual SYEP expo

          5  that we hold at Mary Bertrand High School, and

          6  pretty much those films came into being to show that

          7  the youth are really doing productive work. It is

          8  not that they are doing busy work and it is not that

          9  we are just throwing money away for seven weeks in

         10  the summer.

         11                 So, those films I am sure can be

         12  viewed if you haven't seen them.

         13                 Cypress Hills youth work at local

         14  nursing homes, day care centers, camps,

         15  community-based organizations, hospitals, clinics,

         16  stores, schools, library, community board 5,

         17  communications and computer firms and cultural

         18  institutions, each year, without fail some of these

         19  youth get retained, they get employers to work after

         20  school when their summer job is over.

         21                 Establishing new work sponsors each

         22  year require a lot of leg work and is a hard sell

         23  initially. Many companies and organizations who have

         24  never had summer youth workers, or who have had bad

         25  experiences in the past do not want to give youth a
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          2  chance.

          3                 However, after we convince sponsors

          4  that we are all in this process together, that we

          5  have the same goals which are real work experiences

          6  for the youth, production at the organization where

          7  they are working, supervision by the staffs of those

          8  organizations where our youth are employed, and

          9  monitoring by us during the whole summer, they

         10  usually accept the challenge.

         11                 The end result for many is that our

         12  youth perform well, are responsible, teachable and

         13  worth the efforts.

         14                 The Summer Youth Employment Program

         15  Contractor's Coalition led efforts to save the

         16  Summer Youth Employment Program in 1994 and '95 from

         17  the federal chopping block. We realize how important

         18  it is to train the youth and to give them a work

         19  ethic. In many of the homes that these youths are

         20  in, there are many challenges and barriers to

         21  employment. At least the summer youth employment

         22  program affords us an opportunity to work with these

         23  youth and to begin to address some of these

         24  obstacles.

         25                 The program's case management
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          2  component that was added about four years ago

          3  provides an avenue to make necessary connections and

          4  referrals regarding child care, medical, mental

          5  health entitlements and other services such as

          6  housing.

          7                 Although funded differently under the

          8  new Workforce Investment Act, summer youth

          9  employment must be maintained at a minimal at last

         10  year's quantity 48,000 workers Citywide.

         11                 I admit that it is going to be tricky

         12  how we separate, how this one pot of money will be

         13  administered. New York City has the largest SYEP in

         14  the nation, however, SYEP in New York City is the

         15  largest employer of youth. Any reductions in funding

         16  or program size drastically impacts this underserved

         17  population. Youth employment in general and summer

         18  youth employment in particular should be among the

         19  priorities in this lump sum budget under the new

         20  work enforcement investment act, replacing JTPA

         21  Title IIB, where there was once a designated fund

         22  for SYEP.

         23                 Basically, I feel like I am echoing

         24  what many have said, and our chairman has been

         25  present at many of our events, and I know that we
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          2  are not preaching to someone that doesn't know. So,

          3  I really thank you for convening today's public

          4  hearing.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Let me

          6  reciprocate, first thanking you for your comments.

          7  Secondly, for the work that all of the contractors

          8  provide on behalf of young people.

          9                 Thirdly, to say that it was at an

         10  SYEP contractor's coalition briefing in the spring

         11  that I first became aware that this train was about

         12  to go off the tracks, and we waited patiently,

         13  perhaps too long, over the summer, in the hopes that

         14  the state would do what they were supposed to do,

         15  the City would do what they were supposed to do, and

         16  the federal government would do what they were

         17  supposed to do. So, if it hadn't been for that

         18  initial meeting and briefing by John Twomey, we

         19  wouldn't have had this hearing, and God only knows

         20  at what level of intensity of the various planning

         21  efforts that we have heard described this morning

         22  would be conducted.

         23                 So, thank you very much, from our

         24  point as well.

         25                 Was anybody else going to testify?
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          2  Did you want to submit your testimony in writing?

          3  How would you like to proceed?

          4                 MR. ALTMAN: Hi. My name is Robert

          5  Altman. I am the Assistant Director at the Mosholu

          6  Community Center. I also run the Summer Youth

          7  Employment Program in the Bronx.

          8                 We had over 2,300 teenagers this

          9  summer working. When they say teens don't want to

         10  work, well, come to my center where over 5,500 teens

         11  applied for those positions. So, when they say teens

         12  don't want to work, of they are lazy, that's a myth.

         13  They do want to work. And I thank you for having

         14  this meeting.

         15                 I am very concerned, though, of what

         16  I have been hearing from the first couple of

         17  speakers. Very concerned. And I think we all should.

         18                 I am worried about what the summer is

         19  going to look like, because we all know how hard it

         20  is to start up this program, and it seems no one

         21  really knows what is going on. But that is

         22  something. This not only concerns the teenagers, but

         23  I do have to say, we had over 120 sites that we

         24  placed these young people in and I have to tell you

         25  something - if we had maybe 100 teens, which I call
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          2  knuckleheads - I hate to say that - we had 2,200

          3  good teenagers who really did a wonderful job, who

          4  worked in hospitals, day care centers. We opened up

          5  25 schools that were closed in the summer, and we

          6  had over 200 little kids taking part in free camp

          7  programs.

          8                 That is over 4,000 young children who

          9  had a safe place to be in.

         10                 So, when we talk about just

         11  teenagers, we are talking more than that. We are

         12  talking about families and a lot of other things,

         13  children who are being served by these teenagers.

         14  And I am very concerned, and I know we are talking

         15  about the reduction of teens, but I am afraid about

         16  the 14 and 15 year olds, what they will be doing and

         17  that is a big concern. The 18, 19 year olds, there

         18  is hope. But for the young 14, 15 year olds, not

         19  many places in the City are going to hire them.

         20                 Again, you know, you all know about

         21  what SYEP does for the teenagers, I am not going to

         22  go over that, but I would ask this Committee, I know

         23  you talk about the Mayor talking to the Governor,

         24  but I am very concerned that no one is talking to

         25  anyone, and no one knows what is going on, and that
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          2  when April comes and June comes, no one is going to

          3  know anything and these kids are going to be out

          4  there by themselves. And I am concerned about that.

          5                 I thank you again for letting me

          6  speak.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you again

          8  for your testimony. I want to point out, and I know

          9  that the Mayor's representative is still here, but

         10  one of the things that I found troubling was the

         11  testimony from some of our witnesses about being

         12  able to access funds on March 1st, and then we had

         13  testimony from the federal Department of Labor

         14  saying you can't access those funds until April 1st.

         15  So, if nothing else, I would urge that we get that

         16  discrepancy resolved as quickly as possible.

         17                 MS. KEEL-WILLIAMS: Chairman Fisher,

         18  typically our contracts run from March 1st of one

         19  year to, you know, the 12-month period, so maybe

         20  that is where the March comes from, comes in at. Our

         21  contracts are dated fiscally March.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Well, all I am

         23  saying is that when we have some people saying we

         24  are going to draw down, if we do everything right we

         25  will draw down the money by March 1st and then the
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          2  guy that has got to write the check saying I can't

          3  give it to you until April 1st --

          4                 MS. KEEL-WILLIAMS: We never get it

          5  until July anyway.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: But I don't want

          7  to run the risk, if we can avoid it.

          8                 Who is next?

          9                 MR. MPU: Yes, my name is Joseph M.

         10  Mpu, I am with the Simpson Street Development

         11  Association, Community Planning Board 2.

         12                 Once again, thank you for convening

         13  this public hearing, because this is a critical

         14  issue that we are facing, and I know that no one

         15  wants to look at things in such a negative light,

         16  but the outlook of having 20,000 youth or more on

         17  the streets of New York without a constructive

         18  activity, without constructive planning, without

         19  being engaged in positive things, is a frightening

         20  experience, and I hope that we have learned from the

         21  early sixties where these type of programs did not

         22  exist and things exploded, that if we do not plan

         23  for them, if we do not take the time, if we do not

         24  take the effort and energy to allocate the funds and

         25  resources, that the cost to society could be far
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          2  greater than if we act now and try to put something,

          3  a smooth transition into place, which will benefit

          4  the youth in the community.

          5                 SYEP or the employment program in the

          6  summer has been a win/win situation. There are many

          7  testimonies which can be made about what is impacted

          8  upon youth, how it has helped families, how has it

          9  encouraged youth to go to college, in terms of the

         10  employment sector, the thousands kids that are

         11  serviced through it who aren't teenagers through day

         12  camps, the services provided to the parks, the

         13  services it provides to community organizations,

         14  which there are many organizations which will not be

         15  in business if they do not have these kids, these

         16  youth to provide these functions.

         17                 So, once again, I would like to thank

         18  the Committee for doing this. This is crucial, this

         19  is very important and I just want to end with this,

         20  that I hope that we understand, we do not want drug

         21  dealers to be the major employer of youth in this

         22  City. And if we do not act and do what is right,

         23  that is a real possibility.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON FISHER: Thank you.

         25                 Before you begin, Ms. Funero, I have
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          2  to apologize. The Speaker and I are scheduled to do

          3  a press conference at 12:30, so Council Member

          4  Espada is going to take the chair, and I don't mean

          5  you any disrespect, because I know you are our last

          6  witness.

          7                 And also, I know that some of you may

          8  have comments after we go off the record on this. I

          9  am going to come back upstairs immediately after

         10  this press conference, it should be a few minutes,

         11  if anybody wants to talk about what we have learned

         12  today.

         13                 And my last comment was that, you

         14  know, in school we learned Hizenberg's theory of

         15  uncertainty, you can't measure the speed and

         16  location of an electron at the same time because one

         17  measurement changes the other parameter.

         18                 Fisher's corollary is that the

         19  examination of a public policy problem will change

         20  its shape. And I think just by virtue of the fact

         21  that we had this hearing today, we have hopefully

         22  energized some of the responsible authorities in

         23  addressing this problem.

         24                 So, we will just all have to hold our

         25  breaths and hope that this works out, but I have to

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            114

          1  COMMITTEE ON YOUTH SERVICES

          2  tell you, even under the best of circumstances it

          3  looks like we could have 17,000 kids at risk next

          4  summer and we are going to have to figure out

          5  something more than simply getting the paperwork

          6  done on time if we are going to be able to address

          7  that problem.

          8                 So, if you will excuse me, I will be

          9  back up in a few minutes and Council Member Espada

         10  will take the Chair.

         11                 MS. FUNERO: Okay, I did submit the

         12  written testimony, so I think I might -- a lot of it

         13  is what other people have mentioned this morning, so

         14  I just want to pick out some of the cost-specific

         15  points.

         16                 My name is Ariana Funero, and I

         17  represent United Neighborhood Houses. We are the

         18  federation of 37 settlement houses in the City with

         19  programs benefitting 500,000 participants at 310

         20  sites and Mosholu is one of our members who is

         21  sitting up here today.

         22                 I did just want to say, pick out some

         23  of the things:

         24                 One, as far as the March question,

         25  the Mayor's Management Report for the Department of
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          2  Employment does say that recruitment for the summer

          3  of 1999 began in March of 1999, so we need that

          4  process to begin again this March.

          5                 And I just want to read some of the

          6  stories from youth that I collected in preparing

          7  testimony, because it is a voice that is somewhat

          8  missing from this hearing today.

          9                 Some of the most persuasive arguments

         10  for supporting a substantial Summer Youth Employment

         11  Program come from youth themselves.

         12                 This past summer, SYEP participants

         13  working at the Hudson Guild eloquently spoke about

         14  their experiences with a reporter from channel 4

         15  news. The youth saw the positions as building their

         16  resumes and helping them to learn what it means to

         17  have a job, get to the work place on time, and look

         18  presentable.

         19                 All three students interviewed

         20  expressed that their clerical, child care and

         21  maintenance positions were helping them to prepare

         22  for their future career goals, which included law,

         23  forensic, pathology and marketing.

         24                 In preparing for this testimony, I

         25  spoke with an SYEP participant who works at the East
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          2  Side Settlement in the Bronx. Brian, 16, worked with

          3  youngsters in East Side Summer Camp, cleaned parks,

          4  and sat on a community building committee with the

          5  Police Athletic League.

          6                 He noted that the job helped him to

          7  understand the real world and what it meant to work

          8  and that his salary helped him to start a bank

          9  account.

         10                 I also heard stories from SYEP

         11  participants at the Center for Family Life in Sunset

         12  Park, Brooklyn. One young woman, Lucy, a 17 year

         13  old, who emigrated from the Dominican Republic two

         14  years ago credited her SYEP camp counselor position

         15  with helping her learn new job skills, sharpen her

         16  English language skills, and gain a better

         17  understanding of American culture. She now has a

         18  part-time position in the Center for Family Life's

         19  After School Program, a job she got as a result of

         20  her experience in SYEP.

         21                 Other students saw SYEP as helping

         22  them with leadership skills, as they learned how to

         23  run meetings and create activities for children and

         24  realized that they were role models for the

         25  youngsters they were working with.
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          2                 As far as the day camp issue,

          3  community-based organizations, and particularly

          4  summer camps, depend on SYEP participants to staff

          5  their programs.

          6                 At Sunny Side Community Center in

          7  Queens, it has three day camp programs with a total

          8  43 staff, and 26 of those are SYEP participants.

          9                 Without a subsidized summer job

         10  program, they would lose over 50 percent of their

         11  counselors and would have to struggle to find the

         12  funding to support 26 new people.

         13                 Such difficulties with funding and

         14  staffing could cause camps to cut back on children

         15  served and even shut down.

         16                 The effects of fewer day camps on

         17  families who depend on them for school-aged child

         18  care each summer could be a serious problem in many

         19  neighborhoods.

         20                 Many thousands of New Yorkers, young

         21  and old businesses, and community organizations have

         22  been positively touched by SYEP this year.

         23                 It is now the City's responsibility

         24  to ensure subsidized summer jobs continue.

         25                 UNH urges the City Council to fight
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          2  to provide at least as many summer job slots as last

          3  year, which might mean a $30 million investment by

          4  the City. It would be money well spent.

          5                 New York City must remain committed

          6  to developing our work force by investing in real

          7  summer job opportunities for all of our youth, and a

          8  subsidized community-based summer job program is the

          9  touchstone of such an investment.

         10                 Thank you for the opportunity to

         11  testify.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ESPADA: Okay, I

         13  would like to thank all of you for coming out today,

         14  and everyone that has stood the duration. It

         15  obviously was a tremendously informative hearing in

         16  which we took forth a whole host of new information

         17  that is still being collected, and obviously Ken

         18  Fisher and this Committee will be looking at this

         19  issue very, very seriously and I think that some of

         20  the testimony we heard today is extremely

         21  encouraging, others is troubling. Hopefully we will

         22  be able to get everyone up to speed and young folks

         23  will be able to be established with their positions

         24  for this upcoming summer.

         25                 Thank you all very much, and this
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          2  meeting is adjourned.

          3                 MR. MPU: Thank you.

          4                 MS. KEEL-WILLIAMS: Thank you.

          5                 (Hearing concluded at 12:35 p.m.)

          6

          7

          8

          9

         10

         11

         12

         13

         14

         15

         16

         17

         18

         19

         20

         21

         22

         23

         24

         25

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            120

          1

          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, CINDY MILLELOT, a Certified

         10  Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in and for the

         11  State of New York, do hereby certify that the

         12  foregoing is a true and accurate transcript of the

         13  within proceeding.

         14                 I further certify that I am not

         15  related to any of the parties to this action by

         16  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         17  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         18                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         19  set my hand this 2nd day of December 1999.
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